Page 1

WLV LN
UNITED

MEDICAL CENTER

General Board Meeting

Date: June 27,2018

Location: United Medical Center
1310 Southern Ave., SE,
Conference Rooms 2-3
Washington, D.C. 20032

2018 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

LaRuby Z. May, Chair
Dr. Malika Fair, Vice-Chair
Matthew Hamilton, CEO

Girume Ashenafi
Jacqueline Bowens
Konrad Dawson, MD
Brenda Donald
Millicent Gorham
Angell Jacobs
Dennis Haghighat, MD
Sean Ponder

Velma Speight
Wayne Turnage
Mina Yacoub, MD




OUR MISSION

United Medical Center is dedicated to the health and well-being
of individuals and communities entrusted to our lives.

OUR VISION

UMC is an efficient, patient-focused provider of
high-quality of healthcare the community needs.

UMC will employ innovative approaches that yield
excellent experiences.

UMC will improve the lives of District residents by
providing high value, integrated and
patient-centered services.

UMC will empower healthcare professionals to live up
to their potential to benefit our patients.

UMC will collaborate with others to provide high
value, integrated and patient-centered services.




UNITED

MEDICAL CENTER

NFPHC Board of Directors General Meeting
Wednesday, June 27, 2018

Table of Contents

ABENUA ettt e ereare sreeresra s s e e n e sa st stesneseesenn

MEELtING IMINUEES ... et s saesssre rses sseasnsnesrn e s snasne nee Tab 2

CoNSENTE AGENAA ..ot e se e s e seeer e sre e nee e ne srsere s s ereaneens

A. Dr. Dennis Haghighat, Interim Chief Medical Officer
B. Dr. Mina Yacoub, Medical Chief of Staff

Executive Management RePOrt... ... ccnrnccriecrcesnenes e creseecveereeenens Tab 4

Matthew Hamilton, Chief Executive Officer
COMMILEEE REPOILES....oiiieeeeeeceeretcreirne st stesee st saseeecsasn s sassnesemnsssns sasssns rsnsassssnnnas
Patient Safety and Quality Committee - Dr. Malika Fair, Chair

Finance Committee — Wayne Turnage, Chair




Tab 1

Agenda



J\/C NA(C T UNITED
. « 4 I V L_\._4 MEDICAL CENTER

- R s by g aans

THE NOT-FOR-PROFIT HOSPITAL CORPORATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

LARUBY Z. MAY, BOARD CHAIR

The monthly Governing Board meeting of the Board of Directors of the Not-For-Profit Hospital
Corporation, an independent instrumentality of the District of Columbia Government, will
convene at 9:00 a.m. on Wednesday, June 27, 2018. The meeting will be held at the United
Medical Center, 1310 Southern Ave., SE, Washington, DC 20032 in the Conference Room.
Notice of a location, time change, or intent to have a closed meeting will be published in the
D.C. Register, posted in the Hospital, and/or posted on the Not-For-Profit Hospital Corporation’s
website (www.united-medicalcenter.com).

DRAFT AGENDA

I. CALL TO ORDER
II. DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM
III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

IV. READING AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES
May 23, 2018

V. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Dr. Dennis Haghighat, Chief Medical Officer
B. Dr. Mina Yacoub, Medical Chief of Staff

VII. EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT REPORT
Matthew Hamilton, Chief Executive Officer

VIII. COMMITTEE REPORTS
Patient Safety and Quality Committee
Finance Committee



IX. PUBLIC COMMENT

X. OTHER BUSINESS
A. Old Business
B. New Business

XI. ANNOUNCEMENTS

NOTICE OF INTENT TO CLOSE. The NFPHC Board hereby gives notice that it may close
the meeting and move to executive session to discuss collective bargaining agreements,
personnel, and discipline matters. D.C. Official Code §§2 -575(b)(2)(4A)(5),(9),(10),(11),(14).



Tab 2

Meeting Minutes



pUE SSUIPU} UO 29)IUIWIO)) W[ESH S,[IOUn0)) JoLq 0} papasu Hodoy SIBZey o |
ATVNOJ VANTIY ‘HALLININOD DNINNV'Id JIDOALVALS

“JuoMOSEURW 9ATIO3LJS 2INSUD 0} [e)1IdSOY oY) pue pieog O3 LM JI0OM Jsnu
SIBZRJA S9INSBOW A)[IqRIunodoe IOJ SUIOWI) YSI[qRISS [Ue[J UONOY SIBZBIN e
"$S900NS 10J 9P IwIo)) Suruued 913218NS
31} pue peuo(] I0J03II(] O} NOA JNUBY], 1ea1oy pIeogd JO $S900NS pagpa[mouwdy e

"SoLIjeUI
WYSISIOAO S} SUTULISIOP
0} wea} AN[Iqeiunosoe

SIBZBJA UO preuod ‘$0T 18 PoIp oym
pue JyB1adg SI0103IL( | ‘aonpuUNoy UOSUYOf ADAO(T ‘S ‘Aouiope UBOLIDWY UBOLYY ‘Suons 0} SInqu], e
pajutodde :Aey 1rey) AVIN MIVHD uorsSnISI(Y

epuady
uonuMm se paroxdde epualy | o1 Jo feaoaddy

‘KRN AqnygeT Aq paareyd Sunea

"ULSNY [PRYPIA £q poUIuLIep wniond) NV L0:6 Je I9pIo 01 pa[[ed Sunesp I9pIQ 0} [[&D

W) UV worSSNISI(Y wd)J epwady

‘usmog anor[ ‘qnode & BUIy “I(J ‘[JeUSySY SWINIL) ‘Uosme(] peiuoy I ‘1eq BYEA I ‘I9puod UBd§ Juasqy
‘Qnooe X BUIA] “I(J ‘ewnmny) Uel[r] ‘UOIWEH] MIYNBA
qeySmySey “I(] ‘sqooe[ [[P8uy ‘weyIon JuDI[IA GySeds ewIo A ‘pleuo(] BpUSIq OFeuIn] sukep ‘areq) ‘AN AqnyeT Ul pauoyg

8107 ‘€7 KB ‘Aepsaupap

(ounojuooaje L) ONILHAW AYVOEL TVIINHED
uorneiodio)) [ejdsoy 1Jo1d-10J-10N

UIALNID TVIOIAIWN

Om.u.uZD\{{r
b




uo payels dnoin wooy Aouodiowryg [e}IdSOH ANSIOATUN) UOISUIYSEA 931090
‘seore

yjoq 10} doe[d Ul sUONOALIO)) JO SUB[J ‘90104 URIJodONPN pue DA[] Yioq 0}
panquye swajqoid—padeoss Apoisno ur sjuened omJ, :Jup) YIfesH Jeiolaeysg
"UOT)991I0)) JO Ue[{ JO

uoTjERjUWS[dWI ULIFUOD 0} Pjoadxa SI JSIA UOHEPI[RA ISYJOUE 20ur)doode oYy
uonoaLIo)) Jo ue[d JO 2oue)dosoe Sunreme AJJUILING ST DA

"UOTIOALIO)) JO Ue[J © papIwigns pue [Udy Ul pajIsiA (iesy Jo jusunredo D

yeysySey st Iq : LIOdT YADIIA0 TYIIAIN JATHD

‘pa1dadoe uonoy ‘puodag J1odax 3dadde 0) UONOIA

-podar u1 paysiqnd ydes3

® woy Surpeor—ooueuuopad s A SSISSE 0} SIOFRdIpUI (Q]) USL ‘U
*1edK 9Y) JO 1SOYSIY—T [ | SI SNSUD :MIYPEN

"ONUdASI Pa3dadxo

JO %0[ UMOp SnUSA3I D[] ‘SSO] UOH[IW €61 LVA PSZHEnuue ‘uOH[U
T'11$ 30 1501 Sunerado sMOYs JUSWIAIRIS SWOSU[—E [ A JO ATeunuung [BIOUBUL]

agewin ], auiep 10)30( ‘FALLINNOD TONVNIA

pa3dadoe uonofy "puodag J10dax 3dadde 0) uono

-0oueUIOLIad SIBZBJA] MIIAJI O}

JJUOW OBD pasn aq [[Im Ur[J UONOY juswageusy pue sainsed]y Suiso[) den
‘suorjeoadxa S)1 U0 SIRZRIN

0] UOIIOAIIP 9AIS P[NOYS pIeog 'PAAJOAUI 9q Jsnuwl OJD(Q UOHRIUdWNIOP
pUE SONSSI JO PAYLOU SEM PIBOg [N oY} Udy) ‘Sopnt oy sfuneejy uedQ o
Jopun ueld uonoe A[yyuow s}t ap1aoid 0} sieze]N — 10)e1ado — §s9001d JLIOISIY
uo pasiape :A[uowr Suneour Jo aImonns oy pasedsns :ofewn] 101091
‘uone)oadxd

s.pleog amsud 0} OJIDO pue JIDHA woy moddns ym Arfigejunosoe
S1BZRJA] JO YS1S10A0 doueuLIO}10d JNOQE 90THIUIO,) SOURUL] Ul P[3Y UOISSNISI(]

‘preog DIA(] JO SUOHRPUSTIIIOIDI




"SJUSPISAI D(J dI0W
9pNIOUl JSNUI PUB PIBA\
oy ur oAordwo jso318]

ot St DN AN 1By

‘SJUopISal

D 2Ie oym seakopdwa
O Jo IJaqunu oY)
apraoid uoyruuey "IN
ey sisanbar ey Irey)

‘KeJAl 118D Aq INV L0°1] I¢ pawinofpy Sunady pieog 8107 A6
‘A121040ddS PaqLIOSUD.LY SAINUIPY UOISSIS PaSO])

Uo155ag Uad() 01 uingY 1P 110y

"PAUIULISIR(] WILIONY) ‘U0ISSaS paso]) oul 083 01 v j10Y

‘paydodoe monoyy ‘puoddg ‘syrodax 3dadde 0) oo

* JUOISS2G PIso[D),, UT PIssnosip 9q 0} suoysanb [suuosisg

*K}1[B110W puE )Mo YoI8asal 0} PION ‘SUISEaIOUI ST JS0) AovuLIey ]

"'810T “p0 SUN{ UO 1IB)S [[IM S[OUSIN BIOIBJA] I0J0SIL(T ‘PoIry SISI[BISUST MU "YH
"Yoeq USNe) 3q [[14 HO0LS ‘S10T ‘T dunf drq UE)

sem J/LTE$ ‘LT [Udy uo joeq UOIIA [§ SIUBM S0LJO PIBOIPIA :SUSST NS

uoyrure g MaYReA 1A L LIOdTd INHWADVNVIN FALLADTXA

44 24} Y3noxy} 0} payjrupe

Suroq juoned oYy noyIm DN ol Apoaxp syun yoAsd 1oyio woy sjusned
JO uoIssTwpe suruIeaxs o} ss9001d dofpAap 0} Sunpom JiU[) YIESH IoIARYSg
"awinjoA juspedino o juepodwr st dn-moT[0] 981BYISIP IS0d

"ONUAALI pUR ddUBULIOLIdd

aroidur 0) DN JO INO SIDJSUBH 2INSUD .0} MD UMM A[2sO[d SurjIopm

qnode X eul]\ "1 :AAVLS TVOIAHIA 40 AATHD

‘oo aao1duur 0} A[nyg ut Je)s [[im yorym sijeldsoyq
pue Jyg 99s1A0 dnoin O aaey o) ST [eoS uusy-8uo] ‘107 ‘10 [wdy




Tab 3

Consent Agenda



General Board Meeting
Date: June 27,2018

CMO REPORT

Presented by:
Dennis Haghighat, MD
Chief Medical Officer




» UMC is an efficient, patient-focused, provider of high quality healthcare the community

» UMC will employ innovative approaches that yield excellent experiences.

» UMC will improve the lives of District residents by providing high value, integrated and

» UMC will empower healthcare professionals to live up to their potential to benefit our

» UMC will collaborate with others to provide high value, integrated and patient-centered

> ADULT
EMERGENCY

FH(HEL'\\'

The Not-for-Profit Hospital Corporation, commonly known as United Medical Center or UMC,
is a District of Columbia government hospital (not a private 501(c)(3) entity) serving Southeast
DC and surrounding Maryland communities

Our Mission:
United Medical Center is dedicated to the health and well-being of individuals and communities
entrusted in our care.

Our Vision:

needs.

patient-centered services.
patients.

services.

L I CHILE
MEDIC
IOFFICER

Dennis P. Haghighat, M.D.

June 2018




Pl

T\ s
UNITED

. ﬁ
% MEDICAL CENTER

Medical Staff’ Sununaga) ry

Medical Staff Commitiee Meetings

Medical Executive Committee Meeting, Dr. Mina Yacoub, Chief of Staff

The Medical Staff Executive Committee (MEC) provides oversight of care, treatment, and services provided by practitioners with
privileges on the UMC medical staff. The committee provides for a uniform quality of patient care, treatment, and services, and
reports to and is accountable to the Governing Board. The Medical Staff Executive Committee acts as liaison between the
Governing Board and Medical Staff.

Peer-Review Committee, Dr. Gilbert Daniel, Committee Chairman

The purpose of peer review is to promote continuous improvement of the quality of care provided by the Medical Staff. The role
of the Medical Staff is to provide evaluation of performance to ensure the effective and efficient assessments and education of the
practitioner and to promote excellence in medical practices and procedures. The peer review function applies to all practitioners
holding independent clinical privileges. -

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee, Dr. Eskender Beyene, Committee Chairman

The Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee discusses all policies, procedures, and forms regarding patient
care, medication reconciliation, and formulary medications prior to submiiting to the Medical Executive
Committee for approval.

Credentials Committee, Dr. Barry Smith, Committee Chairman

The Credentials Commitiee is comprised of physicians who review all credential files to ensure all items such as applications, dues
payment, eic. are appropriate. Once approved through Credentials Commitiee, files are submitted to the Medical Executive
Committee and the Governing Board.

Medical Education Committee, Dr. Jerome Byam, Committee Chairman
The Medical Education Committee was formed to review all upcoming Grand Rounds presentations. The committee discusses
improvements and new ideas for education of clinical staff.

Performance Improvement Committee, Commitiece Chairman

The Performance Improvement Committee is comprised of 1-2 representatives from each department who report monthly on the
activity of each department based on standards established by the Joint Commission, the Department of Health, and the Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS).

Bvlaws Committee, Dr. David Reagin, Committee Chairnan
Members include physicians who meet to discuss implementation of new policies and procedures for bylaws, as it pertains to
physician conduct.

The Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations have been revised in preparation for the upcoming Joint Commission inspection.
The changes were reviewed, discussed and approved by the Bylaws Committee and will be forwarded to the Medical Executive
Committee and then the Board of Directors for review and approval.

Physician IT Committee
Members include physicians who meet to discuss the implementation of the new hospital-wide Meditech upgrade, as well as the
physician documentation for ICD-10.



Wi UM
*wq_‘;v* UN]T;D

MEDICAL CENTER

DEPARTMENT CHAIRPERSONS

Anesthesiology «wDr. Amaechi Erondu
Critical Care Dr. Mina Yacoub
Emergency Medicine «so Francis O’Connell
Medicine Dr. Musa Momoh
PatNOIOZY cuverseissssosrivesarsnossssansasesssasssasosens Dr, Eric Li
Psychiatry Dr. Surendra Kandel
Radiology cecveessevecsanrserssssconsessansssassssasenss Dr. Raymond Tu
SUFGEIY cererrssrsasssssessessessesasassassrsasasssassssssessssstsssssssatsssssssnssassssssssssssssesssssssens Dr. Gregory Morrow




Departmental Reports




@
g UNITED

MEDICALCENTER xe,y

e —— el e R e e R et et st et

N

ABO Rh Blood Typing and Rhesus Factor
ALOS Average Length of Stay
AMA rate Against Medical Advice Rate
BHU Behavior Health Unit
BI RADS Breast Imaging Reporting and Data System
CAUTI Catheter Associated Urinary Tract Infection
CCHD Critical Congenital Heart Defect
CLABSIs Catheter Associated Urinary Tract Infections
CPEP Comprehensive Psychiatric Emergency Program
CT Computerized Tomography
- ED Emergency Department
- EGD Esophagogastroduodenoscopy
ERCP Endoscopic Retrograde Cholangiopancreatography
FT FTE Full-time employee
ESR Control Erythrocyte Sedimentation Rate
HELLP Syndrome Hemolysis, Elevated Liver Enzymes, Low Platelet Counts
HCAHP Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems
" HIM Health Information Management
HTN/PIH Hypertension/Pregnancy-Induced Hypertension
ICD 10 International Classification of Diseases
ICU Intensive Care Unit
- IMC Intermediate Care Unit
LWBS Left without Being Seen
MRI Magnetic Resonance Imaging
MRSA Methicillin-Resistant Staphylococcus Aureus
NICU Neonatal Intensive Care Unit
NHSN National Healthcare Safety Network
NASCET North American Symptomatic Carotid Endarterectomy
OR Operating Room
PI Performance Improvement
PICC Peripherally Inserted Central Venous Catheter
PIW Psychiatry Institute of Washington
PP Hemorrhage Post-Partum Hemorrhage
RRT Rapid Response Team
SW Social Worker
VAP Ventilator Associated Pneumonias
VAE Ventilator Associated Event
VBAC Vaginal Birth After Cesarcan
VTE Venous Thromboembolism

e P e e e e et



L

I
|

e S —

I
|
|

-

e e — et s e Yt e e g e e 3 S - e — o — e

®
' UMC
W i

MEDICALCENTER

+»CHIEF
TEDICAL
'8 %) S T 7 >

Dennis P. Haghighat, M.D.

June 2018

Chief Medical Officer Board Report

The Plan of Corrections that resulted from the Department of Health Annual visits in April of this year
have been successfully submitted. The quality team and leadership teams at UMC are continuing to
round daily to assure compliance with these plans. UMC anticipates a likely return visit by DOH and CMS
in July of 2018 and expects that these bodies will find us in full compliance with the plan of correction at
that time and going forward.

The number of visits to our ER and the number of resulting admissions to UMC continue to track at the
projected 2018 budget levels. UMC is experiencing positive variances to budget in the number of ER
visits resulting in admissions to observation status and in Medicare Case Mix index compared to our
2018 budget levels. In the months of April and May the number of patients admitted to the Behavioral
Health Unit (BHU) were 30% above historical levels. We have seen a drop off in BHU admissions in the
early part of this month and we are monitoring this to see if this is just a temporary decrease or a trend.

The transition to the GW ER group continues at a smooth pace and UMC and GW leadership continue to
meet on a weekly basis to assure that this trend continues. Weekly transition meetings with the GW
hospitalist group started this month and orientation sessions for the new providers have been
scheduled, and in some cases completed, and the remaining sessions will be completed by the end of
this month.

My focus will now turn to improving the productivity and service to our community from the UMC
primary care clinic. Meetings with the clinic leaders have taken place and meetings with individual
providers will have been completed by the time of this month’s Board meeting. The goal will be to
significantly increase the number of Southeast Washington residents that we serve each month.



@) h A
‘\‘, ‘ | |
4 UNITED

MEDICALCENTER

Anesthesiology Department
Amaechi Envundu, M.D., Chairman

PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

The overall cases for the month of April 2018 were 219.Total surgical cases were 97 while
Endoscopy cases were 122. X

We have substantially reduced late surgical cases (Elective) after 17:30 with the continued
assistance of the surgical department.

QUALITY INITIATIVES AND OUTCOME

SCIP protocol is consistently ensured for all our patients with no fall outs. Surgical and anesthesia
time outs are followed per protocol including preoperative antibiotics, temperature monitoring and
all relevant quality metrics.

Review of the facility anesthesia performance benchmarked with Age and co-morbidity compares
well with other facilities.

We have a procured a PYXIS ANESTHESIA CART that will become functional within the next
few weeks. This is milestone, almost 3 years in making. This allows us to have a centralized
medication management system in the operating rooms. It provides for medication waste
management and appropriate utilization of resources.

We will reintroduce REGIONAL ANESTHESIA service to support the surgical orthopedic patient
service. Our goal is to improve patient satisfaction, reduce overall opioid requirement for post-op
pain control and reduce patients hospital length of stay.

EVIDENCE-BASED PRACTICE

Anesthesia department is continuing to review all current policies and update them to align with
the best practices. Our Providers continuously provide evidence based practice and peer review to
ensure quality patient care

SERVICE (HCAHPS) SATISFACTION

The Anesthesia Providers continue to provide quality service to our patients. We continue to
provide real-time performance assessment of the anesthesia providers. We provide standardized
service that ensures patient satisfaction.

e e S ——— e S e e e e e e et




O_O

BILLING AND REVENUE CYCLE MANAGEMENT

We have ensured that our providers are oriented to the ICD 10 requirements for both the anesthesia
and hospital billing portions. We monitor closely documents and chart by our providers to ensure
chart completion at the appropriate time.

:
"t



Critical Care Department
Mina Yacaub, M.D., Chairman

PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

In May 2018, the Intensive Care Unit had 67 admissions, 67 discharges, and 289 Patient Days,
with an Average Length of Stay (ALOS) of 4.3 days. The ICU managed 75 patients in May.
Average ICU overnight census for May was 10.3 patients.

QUALITY OUTCOMES

Core Measures Performance
ICU continues to meet target goals for quality metrics. ICU is embarked on a sepsis initiative in
collaboration with Quality Department.

Morbidity and Mortality Reviews

ICU Mortality
ICU had 8 deaths for 75 patients managed, with an overall ICU mortality rate of 10.7 % for May.
Mortality review is conducted in June Critical Care Committee meeting with Quality Department.

Severe Sepsis and Septic Shock

ICU managed 20 patients with severe sepsis and septic shock in May. Three ICU deaths are
directly attributable to severe sepsis and septic shock, with an ICU sepsis specific mortality rate
of 15%. Quality Department under leadership of Ms. Tina Rein is working in a multidisciplinary
effort with ICU, ED and Hospitalists to improve and monitor performance on sepsis measures, and
we are beginning to see improving performance and outcome metrics. It is important to note we
need to see a continued trend of improvement.

Infection Control Data

Infection control data for May is being compiled by Infection Control RN and will be presented to
Critical Care Committee. ICU infection rates continue to be much lower than national averages.
ICU infection rate data is reported regularly to the National Healthcare Safety Network (NHSN).

U e ————— i A———————————————— e e e et e e B e B 5 e



Rapid Response and Code Blue Teams

ICU continues to lead, monitor and manage the Rapid Response and Code Blue Teams at UMC.
Reports are reviewed in Critical Care Committee meeting with Nursing and Quality Department.
Goal is to increase utilization of Rapid Response Teams in order to decrease cardiopulmonary
arrest episodes on the medical floors, and improve patient outcomes. May and June data would be
presented in July meeting.

Care Coordination/Readmissions
In May, 75 patients were managed in the ICU. There was one readmission to the ICU within 48
hours of transfer out, and this was due to a new medical problem.

Evidence-Based Practice (Protocols/Guidelines)

Evidence based practices continue to be implemented in ICU with multidisciplinary team
rounding, ventilator weaning, infection control practices, and patient centered practices. New
initiative being implemented with Infection Prevention team is Hand Hygiene. Infection
Prevention team is monitoring performance.

Growth/Volumes

ICU is staffed 24/7 with in-house physicians and has a 16 bed capacity and is looking forward to

operating at full capacity and full potential.

Stewardship
ICU continues to implement and monitor practices to keep ICU ALOS low and to keep hospital
acquired infections and complications low.

ICU continues to precept George Washington University Physician Assistant students during their
clinical rotations in UMC ICU.

Financials - We are requesting feedback on ICU financial performance.

Needed Steps to Improve Performance

Nursing staffing continues to be a challenge and we need more critical care nurse recruitment, and
importantly, nurse retention. Goal is to continue to provide safe and high quality patient care,
caring for patients with increased illness acuity, providing best evidence based practice, all while
keeping ALOS low and preventing Hospital Acquired infections and complications. Working
closely with Quality Department and Infection preventionist to ensure we continue to meet
benchmarks.




——— e e

—————

Emergency Medicine Department
Fvancis ("Connell, M.D., Chairman

Attached are the summary of Emergency Department (ED) volume, key measures
and throughput data for May 2018 as well as data from the preceding months of
2018.

In our second month at UMC, we continued to invest time fostering a collaborative
work environment in the ED and amongst the consultant and supportive services in
the hospital.

The daily census and ambulance traffic was higher than previous months with most
throughput measures remaining consistent in comparison to previous months.

We compared average and median throughput times for the month of May and noted
that most times were similar with the exception of boarding times for admitted
patients. The average boarding time for admitted patients is 267 minutes, which is
markedly different from the median time of 30 minutes. This suggests that there is
a cohort of patients who are boarding for extended periods of time. It would be
important to note that most psychiatric admissions were omitted from this data set
as that often is connected to longer boarding times.

One of our key areas for improvement remains throughput of patients through the
ED. As we look ahead, we are starting to identify areas which may be leading to
delays, some of which may be easily remedied while others will require more long-
term process improvement.

e e e el e e




ED Volume and Events 2018
Jan % Feb

Total patients 5027 4656
. Daily Average 162 166
Census
Admit 452 9.0% 461
Transfer 60 12% 55
AMA 73 15% 55
Eloped 36 0.7% 35
LWBS 109 2.2% 79
Left Prior to 189 3.8% 168
Triage
Ambulance 1541 30.7% 1364
Arrivals :

ED Volume and Events 2018

May %
. Total patients 5071
' Daily Average 169
Census
. Admit 484  9.5%
. Transfer 90  1.8% .
AMA 40 0.8%
 Eloped a5  0.9%
LWBS 148 2.9%
Left Prior to
. Triage 249  4.9%
. Ambulance 1468
. Arrivals

%

9.9%
1.2%
1.2%
0.8%
1.7%
3.6%

29.3%

ED Throughput May 2018 (time in minutes)

Median Times

- Admissions

Mar

4881
157

461
86
56
45
101
156

1453

%

9.4%
1.8%
1.1%
0.9%

2.1%

3.2%

29.8%

Average Time

Apr

4783
159

460
90
49
38

107

235

1314

9.6%
1.9%
1.0%
0.8%
2.2%
4.9%

27.5%




i e ——————— e ot

)

Door to triage
Door to room
Door to provider
Door to decision
Door to departure

Time to provider
Time to admit decision
Boarding time

Discharges

Door to triage
Door to room
Door to provider
Door to decision
Door to departure

Time to provider
Time to discharge decision
Waiting to depart

i Transfers

' Door to triage
Door to room
Door to provider
Door to decision

Time to _provider
Time to transfer decision

ED Throughput 2018 (median times in minutes)

Admissions
Door to triage
Door to room
Door to provider

“ Door to decision

' Door to departure

Time to provider

16
29
29
262
292

233
30

24

84

95
220
270

11
125
50

14

36

36
239

203

Jan

17

21

21
245
267

Feb

16

23

23
266
285

25

60

60
297
564

237
267

33
105
115
237
291

10
122
54

24

93

93
400

307

Mar

16

25

25
240
255

Apr

18

32

33
250
293

May

16

29

29
262
292



' Time to admit decision 224 243 215 218 233
Boarding time 22 19 15 | 43 30
i
Discharges
Door to triage 22 22 19 24 24
| Door to room 63 65 51 81 84
| Door to provider 75 78 67 92 95
Door to decision 187 188 | 180 229 220
- Door to departure 233 234 i 222 276 270
Time to provider 12 13 16 11 11
' Time to discharge decision 124 123 129 148 | 125
- Waiting to depart : 46 46 42 47 | 50
Transfers .
Door to triage 16 15 ; 13 12 14
- Door to room 24 22 22 26 36
Door to provider 24 28 26 29 36
f Door to decision 266 267 291 221 239 |
. Time to provider 0 : 6 4 3 0

1 i

| Time to transfer decision ' 242 1 245 269 195 203




Internal Medicine Department
Musa Memeh, M.D., Chairman

The Department of Medicine remains the major source of hospital admissions. For the month of

May 2018,

Patient days-

Observation Days-

Admissions-

Discharges-

ALOS-

GWMFA Hospitalist begins July 1, 2018 at 7:00am

Morbidity and Mortality Conference on June 20, 2018 at 8:00AM in Foundation Board

Room.

EGD

Medicine
Hospital

Medicine
Hospital

Medicine
Hospital

Medicine
Hospital

Medicine
Hospital

Colonoscopies
Bronchoscopies

ERCP

1534
2698

133
160

261
456

245
467

6.26 days
5.78 days

Procedures
56
61
4

1

Announcements

57%

83%

57%

52%




UNITED

- MEDICALCENTER
Pathology Department
&nic Li, M.D., Chairman
Month 01 02 03 c4 05 06 07
Reference Lab test — Urine Protein 80% 3 days 100% 58% 98% 98% 98%
40/40 28/48 52 82 920
Reference Lab specimen Pickups 90% 3 daily/2 92% 93% 81% 70% 88%
weekend/holiday
66/72 65/70 13 13 14
Review of Performed ABO Rh confirmation for Patient with 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
no Transfusion History (Benchmark 80%)
Review of Satisfactory/Unsatisfactory Reagent QC Results 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
{Benchmark 90%)
Review of Unacceptable Blood Bank specimen (Goal 90%) 98% 99% 98% 100% 100%
Review of Daily Temperature Recording for Blood Bank 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Refrigerator/Freezerfincubators (Benchmark <90%)
Utilization of Red Blood Cell Transfusion/ CT Ratio - 1.0 - 13 12 12 1.2 12
2.0
Wasted/Expired Blood and Bload Products (Goal 0) 4 -0- 2 3 7
Measure number of critical value called with documented 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Read Back 98 or >
Hematology Analytical Pl 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Body Fluid 13/13 12/12 6/6 15/15 10/10
Sickle Cell 0/0 2/2 2/2 0/0 71
ESR Control 100 100% 96% 100% 100%
19/19 18/18 22/23 31/31 27/27
Delta Check Review 100% 95% 100% 100% 100%
162/162 164/165 186/186 156/156 195/195




o

LABORATORY PRODUCTIVITY RESULTS - We developed performance indicators we use
to improve quality and productivity.

TURNAROUND TIME - Turnaround time is a critical factor that directly influences customer
satisfaction.

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION - The key to business is providing great customer service,
superior quality, and creating a unique customer experience.

COMPLAINTS - Complaints are an important metric for evaluating the quality of our laboratory
processes.

EQUIPMENT DOWNTIME - It is important that laboratories track, monitor, and evaluate
equipment failure rates and down time.



N _
~ UNITED
g MEDICALCENTER
Psychiatry Department
Surendna Handel ,M.D., Chairman
Referrals May YTD
Total Admissions 105 530
Admissions
ALOS (Target<7 Days) 5.42 5.498
Voluntary Admissions 51 174
Involuntary Admissions 54 47
Total Admissions 105 430
Referral Sources

CPED 15 123
UMCED 89 354
GWU 0 4
Providence 0] 4
Georgetown 0] 7
Sibley 0 2
UMC Medical/Surgical Unit 1 77
Children Hospital 0 0
Howard 0 5
Laurel Regional Hospital 0 1
Washington Hospital Center 0 2
Suburban 0 0
PIW 0 0
Other/Not Listed 0 18
Total Referrals 105 527

Other Measures
ED to Psych Admissions 2.7 3.64
(Target: <2 hours)
Psychosocial Assessments 86% 89%
(Target: 100%)
Treatment Planning (Target: 100%) 79% 76%

Discharge Appointments

Discharged to medical unit 1 5
Transfer to St. Elizabeth’s 1 12
Discharge Appointments for those D/C’ed>72 80% 94%
hours (Target: 100%)
Patients who went to court 1 5

)



UNITED

MEDICALCENTER
Radiology Department
Raymend Tu, M.D., Chairman
Performance Summary:
INP ER OUT TOTAL
EXAM TYPE EXAMS| UNITS |[EXAMS| UNITS |[EXAMS | UNITS [EXAMS| UNITS
CARDIAC CATH 4 3 7
CT SCAN 100 560 196 856
FLUORO 18 0 16 34
MAMMOGRAPHY 149 149
MAGNETIC RESONANCE ANGIQ 3 3
MAGNETIC RESONANCE IMAGING 26 9 51 36
NUCLEAR MEDICINE 14 11 25
SPECIAL PROCEDURES 31 0 5 36
ULTRASOUND 94 218 213 525
X-RAY 159 1000 893 1998
CNMC CT SCAN 23 23
CNMC XRAY 537 537
GRAND TOTAL 446 2347 1540 4279

Quality Initiatives, Outcomes, ete.

Core Measures Performance

100% extra cranial carotid reporting using NASCET criteria
100% fluoroscopic time reporting

100% presence or absence hemorrhage, infarct, mass

100% reporting <10% BI RADS 3

Radiology staff and director are addressing requests for more after hour imaging studies. .
Morbidity and Mortality Reviews: There were no departmental deaths.

Code Blue/Rapid Response Teams (“RRTs”) Outcomes: One rapid response during
cardiology procedure and patient transferred.

Care Coordination/Readmissions: N/A
Evidence-Based Practice (Protocols/Guidelines) We continue to collaborate with

clinical staff on clinical decision support.




Service (HCAHPS Performance/Doctor Communication)
The radiology department working well with the emergency department new staff.

Stewardship
Dr. Tu spoke at the National American College of Radiology Annual meeting in Washington,
DC as Chairman of the Medicaid Network.

Angerican College of Radiciogy
Medicald Network Meeting
ACR Annual Meeting 2018
Monday, Msy 21t 12:00n00m - 1:15pm
Marriott Wardwman Park Hotel
Room - Wilson B
Diak-in: (877) 647-3411
Passcode: 431 385 3638 #

Agenda

I Wekoming Ressarks and P iom « R:
Network

Insights fvom Keih Maccamnon, Dizector of Madketing, Ci ity Relations. and Ox B
Ameilicalth Cagitas Dingir of Colunstia (C)



Surgery Department
Gregony Mowous, M.D., Chairman

For the month of MAY 2018, the Surgery Department performed a total of 219 procedures.
The chart below shows the annual and monthly trends over the last 6 calendar years:

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

JAN 173 159 183 147 216 155

FEB 134 143 157 207 185 194

MAR 170 162 187 215 187 223

APRIL 157 194 180 166 183 182

MAY 174 151 160 176 211 219
JUNE 159 169 175 201 203
JULY 164 172 193 192 189
AUG 170 170 174 202 191
SEP 177 168 166 172 171
oCT 194 191 181 177 214
NOV 137 157 150 196 152
DEC 143 183 210 191 153

TOTAL 1952 201° 2116 2242 2255 754

Over the last several months our surgical volumes have shown a steady rebound back to levels that
are more in line with the consistency and growth we would expect. (Some of the current numbers
may have changed from previous months reports and reflect corrections in how some procedures
or sets of procedures were recorded). We continue to work diligently to increase our efficiencies
and productivity while, at the same time, delivering the highest quality of care.



These include Selection of Prophylactic Antibiotics, VTE Prophylaxis, Anastomotic Leak
Interventions and Unplanned Reoperation.

The OR Committee met in May 2018 with the following action items:

[y

"

‘ We continue to meet and / or exceed the quality measures outlined for the Surgery Department.

:

I

|

l Updated policy for OR Needle, Sponge and Instrument counts was finalized and will

be presented to the Policy and Procedures Committee for approval.

2. On-going evaluation of OR start times and room turnover times to determine where our
processes can be made more efficient. I

3. Continued monitoring of after-hours cases to determine the approprlateness and
optimization of available resources.

4. On-going assessment of how best to utilize technology to improve our patient

|
I
j
l throughput and overall satisfaction across the entire perioperative spectrum.
i

For our vascular surgery services, we have updated some of the patient monitoring and safety
standards and have made the necessary purchase requests to meet these guidelines. These efforts
are designed not only to improve care and safety, but also to expand the types of procedures that
we will be able to offer the community we serve.

continuous evaluation and modification as necessary:

{
!
i
]
1
;‘ The following projects that have been implemented are going well and will undergo
J 1. Weekly OR Rounds where the major surgical procedures to be performed on any
1 given week will be discussed including Diagnosis, Indications and Appropriateness

of Planned Procedures, Alternative Therapies and Anticipated Outcomes. This will
i begin with the General Surgery Department with the other subspecialties to follow.
i This will be a Prospective Review.

2. Monthly / Bi-Monthly Morbidity and Mortality Rounds where ALL
Complications and Adverse outcomes for patients will be analyzed. This will be a
multidisciplinary conference including but not limited to Surgery, Internal
Medicine, Anesthesia, Pathology and ICU. This will be a Retrospective Review.

It is our goal to use these initiatives to improve standardization and reduce unnecessary variability
of care and to bolster patient satisfaction and outcomes.

will allow for better evaluation our current volumes as they relate to the needs of the community
and current allocation of resources.

4 Surgery and Perioperative Services continue to collaborate with Finance to obtain vital data that
1
!




The ultimate goals being:
1. To identify the SERVICE LINES that are best suited for UMC and the community

2. To develop a STRATEGIC PLAN that will focus of meaningful and sustainable
growth in the market place NOT just the volume of cases alone.

3. To improve our PATIENT CARE AND SAFETY objectives




Chief of Medical Staff
Report



Chief of Staff Report
June 15, 2018

During June, the Medical Staff and Medical Staff office are working to complete
credentialing, and orientation processes for GW MFA Hospitalist providers who are scheduled to
start on Sunday July 1%, 2018. Medical Staff Office Staff and leadership are meeting weekly with
administration and GW MFA towards a smooth transitioning of GW MFA into in-patient
services.

The Medical Staff continues to work with administration to ensure patients of our
community continue to receive their services at UMC, when these services are available. It
remains the mission of the Medical Staff to work with administration to increase patient volumes
and activities in both the inpatient and outpatient settings at UMC.

A clinical initiative the Medical Staff is working on in close collaboration with Quality
Improvement Department under leadership of Ms. Tina Rein is the establishment of Severe
Sepsis protocols and pathways with a goal of decreasing mortality due to sepsis at UMC. This is
a CMS quality measure tied to financial returns. Data from May 2018 and going into June show
an improving trend in performance and outcomes. We are committed to the necessary consistent
and ongoing effort, and continued collaboration with Quality Department, for improving and
monitoring performance and outcomes of Severe Sepsis management.

Mina Yacoub, MD
Chief of Staff
United Medical Center



e UMC

UNITED

MEDICAL CENTER

General Board Meeting
Date: June 27,2018

Executive
Management
Report

Presented by:

Matthew Hamilton
Chief Executive Officer




b .

g‘v*a UMC

MEDICAL CENTER

O
T

United Medical Center
Executive Management Report
June 2018

Foundational Elements

* Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems
(HCAPHPS)

e Correlation of Scores to Financial Performance
¢ DOH Follow-up Survey

Infrastructure Fundamentals

¢ ED Volume Demands
¢ Biomedical and Healthcare Informatics

Healthcare Delivery Priorities

¢ Hospitalist Transition on July 1



\..

\J
* } UNITED
== ' MEDICAL CENTER

.z

United Medical Center
Management Report
Operations Summary — June 2018

QUALITY
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH - PLAN OF CORRECTION ACCEPTED

District of Colombia Department of Health survey was completed 4/11/18, findings include:
¢ Governance

Infection Control and environmental oversight

QAPI and oversight of Infection Control activities

Pharmaceutical Services

Physical environment

A plan of correction has been completed for the CMS Deemed Status Statement of Deficiencies
and the DC DOH findings. The plan of correction addresses the immediate remediation of the
findings and system and process improvements including capital projects, maintenance of the
environment, software solutions, and enhanced quality oversight.

After June 25" a survey could take place at any time.
VALUE BASED PURCHASING MONTHLY VALUES

SAFETY SCORE:
1. CDI: Clostridium Difficile Infection
2. CAUTTI: Catheter Associated Urinary Tract Infection,
3. CLABSI: Central Line-Associated Line Infection
4. MRSA: Methicillin-Resistant Staphylococcus Aureus Bacteremia
5. SSI: Surgical Site Infection Colon Surgery and Abdominal Hysterectomy

Central Line i Blood: fection (CLABSI)

2.1 CLABSI

Catheter Assoclated Urinary tract infections (CAUTI)

3.5 CAUTI

Surgicat Site Infections from colon surgery {S51)

0.18 ssl

MRSA

Safety of Care

5.5 MRSA

Hospital Acquired C-diff

0.325 cases




CLINICAL CARE 30 DAY DEATH RATES:
1. Mortality Acute Myocardial Infection
2. Mortality Heart Failure
3. Mortality Pneumonia
4. Mortality Total knee and Hip Arthroplasty

UNITED MEDICAL CENTER NATIONAL RESULT
—;e;;_ l’;te for COPD palientsm - No Different than the National Rate fB.O% o
Death rate for heart attack patients :lo—DlHﬂ:eren; ;;;;:he National Rate 13.6%" -
Death rate for heart fallure patients - _“h—lol;lf:er;n_t t_han—the National Rate - —1:;%“ V
Death rate for pneumonia patients No Different than the National Rate * 15.9%
Death rate for stroke patients No Different than the Naﬂ;:rr_lal l;a;e 14.6%"-
Death rate for CABG surgery patients Not Available-: . 3.2%"

THE LEAPFROG SURVEY

Every year, hospitals across the country demonstrate their commitment to transparency and quality
improvement through the Leapfrog Hospital Survey. United Medical Center participated in 2016.
The organization is completing the survey this year in a commitment to improve patient safety and
accountability. The deadline is June 31, 2018.

REDUCING MORTALITY

The organization is committed to improving systems and processes across the organization and
has committed to a process improvement project to improve the care of patients experiencing
Severe Sepsis and Septic Shock. Work to date includes reconvening the Severe Sepsis committee
to improve the recognition of sepsis and successful resuscitation that saves lives in the
organization.

UMC has reduced Severe Sepsis mortality from 36% in the first quarter of 2017 to 14% which
aligns with National benchmarks.




HCAHPS ((Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems)

wprnesn oan v Top Box Trends Inpatient
United Medical Center
Section - CAHPS - Hospital Environment
e — - -
70 ~61.4
8 662 606
60
55
50 ‘
80.4
45 N
40
351 s ] 1 ! ( ] i 1 1 | 3%'6
AxE JatE Q1S Jais Apts JRNE Geti ST Al QWY QT el Al
SEmtE -Sepit (Dee(S Mae W JJei (S e ¥R G T (ST -Te W ok JJeE
Vo RS SANE Top Box Trends Inpatient
United Medical Center
Section - CAHPS - Comm w/ Nurses
e ———— .
75
70
45
60
59.3 A
SSI i 1 ¥ ] ] 1 H 1 ] ] ] 1

'
AgriS 1S Qetis et Aets W6 et T AT WW T el A
Syt oSentt -DeefS cwar Gdet -Gt ettt Gl SeW DWW oMkl el



United Medical Center
Section - CAHPS - Comm w/ Doctors

80 7.1 780 771 76.2 758 100 a6

75
0 134

65
60

55

54.9

50 | { L] 1 1 ! 1 1} ¥ [ i i i ) |
At WA STl St dartd MW Q¥ b AT W S imM3 R
St Sl Qe S oMarls -GSl et Ded cMae T qfe? JfetT (DeT Mmtl ol

United Medical Center
Question - CAHPS - Recommend the hosgital J

45 na ns 41 4.1 41.4
40
35
30
25

20

19,1
;

A1l J@S Dt Ut Awd Qe 0¥ W At JET JatT et Al
il -Gt Dettt cxw i ket oS Dmt Mel? JeT SeW -fel veld -iald

15! 1 [} ' I L} i 1



United Medical Center
Question - Overall rating of care given

50 ~ Mean:
480
45 - 3 :
40
35
30
25, ' 1 ' 1 ' ' i '
ADrS ZAME OOtIS HTmUe AprYs  Julte S e Jan1T AprilT T Ot'1T anYE  Apra
SSmMS - Sep'E - DECIS - MR ME - SRS - SBDUE - DEC IS - Mar T - Am 17 - DT - DEC'IT - Mar'iE - Jun1E
2108 P=YIY "0 M=1% 0 neS2 ne63 2289 ne39 [ Y] n=4s n=51 n=59 2232
n=number of respendents

SERVICE/PATIENT EXPERIENCE

ICU - Ongoing patient and family rounding addressing ICU needs and concerns. Met with
45 families. The experience has been mostly positive. Families appreciated the care board
as means of POC communication.

S5W/8W — Ongoing patient and family rounding (834 patients/families were rounded)
addressing the cleanliness of the environment, delayed assistance with ADLs, variety of
diet menu and adequate pain control continue to be the theme for this month. Patient
complaints have also gone down as a result of daily rounding.

BHU - “This place looks better than it did the last time I was here” (a comment from a
patient which becomes the theme of the overall patient/family’s comments).

ED — Rounded on 21 patients - received compliments on the quick staff response and
overall cleanliness of the environment. Security presence in the lobby 24/7 with MPD
addition were also appreciated by the patients and families — sense of feeling safe.
Complaints continue to have gone down but noise and pain management were identified
as most concerning. Staffing was increased (8-9RNs and 5-6 Techs) to improve patient
throughput.

Respiratory — Patient complaints about delay in nebs treatment were addressed and
resulted in service recovery.

Wound — 3 patients/week rounded with 100% satisfaction with care — they will refer our
services to friends and the community.

Radiology — Service recovery performed for longer stay in the Radiology Department.
Lab — Continue with rounding and service recovery.

SNF — Patient concerns about the laundry service were addressed and monitored.

QuALITY
The UMC Patient Care Services (PCS) made significant gains in a number of safety and quality
measures. Nurse-led initiatives were behind many of the improvements made in the beginning of

5



this year. PCS is committed in working with the Quality Department in addressing DOH Plan of
Correction (POC).

The Nursing — Sensitive Quality Indicators continue to provide evidence that quality and patient
safety is at the heart of every nurse practicing at UMC. Measures that are being tracked are:
Indwelling Urinary Catheter Infections (CAUTI), Central Lines Infections (CLABSI), Ventilator-
Acquired Event (VAE), Surgical Care Improvement Project (SCIP) and Hospital Acquired
Pressure Ulcers (HAPU). Overall, there were no infections identified for the month of May
(zero infection rate). Sepsis education is underway.

PHARMACY:
e Progress has been made to continue working on the DOH POC
e Pyxis ES training is underway (with IT and Nursing)
e Continue addressing antibiotic stewardship and handling of narcotics

RESPIRATORY:
e 100% compliant with CAP requirements
e Medication Administration education specific to nebs treatment in place

LABORATORY:
e Lab turnaround time with ER will be measured and monitored (mini PDCA)
e Insulin/Accu check education — 100% completed

PEOPLE/STAFF ENGAGEMENT:

e Daily leader rounding continues to be a practice in the ED and inpatient units asking the
staff what is working well and what they need to do their job. Adequate staffing in ED
(RNs, TECHS, UC) ICU, and lab remain a concern. Handheld phones have arrived and are
ready for distribution to facilitate communication of the unit staff. Daily huddles with the
staff were identified as useful to improve communication. AIDET (Acknowledge,
Introduce, Duration, Explain and Thank You) is reinforced as a template for
communication with the patient.

e For SNF, Ambassadorship program was initiated where nursing leadership is assigned to
different rooms to perform follow-up assessments and ensure resident satisfaction and
quality care are provided consistently.

e PCS continue to maintain a good relationship with the District of Columbia Nurses’
Association (DCNA) while addressing labor and staffing issues. Through the Nursing
Practice Committee, issues and concerns in clinical practice are being addressed by the
members of the committee and making recommendations to change or improve clinical
practice. The biggest accomplishment of PCS is the improvement of exceeding the goal of
>80% (achieving 93% in ICU) with regards to nurse-to-staffing ratios in all nursing
departments. This report is most welcomed by the nursing staff as positive in improving
nurse-patient ratio.

Staff recognition on each unit is being implemented.
¢ The new Rehab Director will begin work on June 18, 2018.



FINANCE AND GROWTH

Control of overtime remains a challenge especially in the Emergency Room (8 FTEs over).
With GWMFA joining UMC ED, the need to increase RN FTE (goal is 9 RNs per shift
and 5-6 Techs) is needed to accomplish the ED metrics identified. The total FTEs needed
to meet this goal is 10.8 and the use of agency and RN travelers cannot be avoided.
Aggressive hiring is in place and with the new staff recruited, patient throughput is
expected to improve.

There is currently in place a monitoring process for incremental OT. Any incremental OT
needs the Supervisor’s approval with reasons for staying over. The managers are looking
at the KRONOS daily and addressing the incremental OT in real time.

On April 15, 2018 BHU implemented a Virtual Intake Process in the ER with the purpose
of reducing ER disposition time for Psych patients. ED RNs and MDs were trained about
the new process with the steep learning curve. Staff were re in-serviced on how to do Mini
Mental status Exams.

e Dialysis — 228 performed in May
e Radiology — 252(XR); 525(US); 856 (CT Scan); 7(Cardiac Cath); 34(Fluoro)
Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18
Census 5073 5133 5044 4760 5087
Daily Census 160 174 168 164.3 182
LWBS 109 90 116 132 148
LWBS % 2.15 1.94 2.1 2.7 2.9
Left prior triage 265 277 284 255 289
Left pr:;:r triage 56 54 59 535 5.67
Admissions 410 421 433 512 552
Admission Rate 9.7 9.3 9.5 10.7 10.85
Ambl.llance 1560 1534 1588 1324 1468
arrivals
0, V)

AmPulance 30.75 391 346 27.8% 28.85%

arrivals %

Elopements 44 61 57 68 57
Triage 21 27 23 25 22
Room 59 67 56 98 85

Provider 69 68 66 112 97
Disposition DC 177 226 155 241 265
Disposition Admit 203 292 233 355 333
LOS DC 239 175 189 270 2737
LOS Admit 312 292 370 475 564
Dispo to leave 29 24
(DC) 24 31 34

Dispo to leave

(Admin) 263 189 270 210 321




Telemetry - Goal: 5:1; ADC: 45

Less than 5 5 6 7 8 ADC JeEFtomet=
Goal 80%
January 32% 56% 11% 0% 0% 53.7 88%
February 20% 73% 5% 2% 0% 46.2 93% |
March 39% 52% 5% 5% 0% 46.7 91%
April 52% 38% 7% 3% 0% 43.4 90%
May 39% 52% 5% 2% 3% 47 91%
i
Medical/Surgical - Goal: 6:1; ADC: 35 |
Less than 6 6 7 8 9 ADC %é::fs':;' "
January 92% 8% 0% 0% 0% 13.3 100%
February 75% 23% 2% 0% 0% 18.7 98%
March
April 52% 40% 5% 3% 0% 12,5 92%
May 76% 15% 6% 2% 2% 19 91%
ICU - Goal 2:1; ADC: 12
Less than 2 2 3 4 ADC %é::;’;:;t
January 13% 82% 5% 0% 9.70 95%
February 4% 93% 4% 0% 9.90 97%
March 10% 90% 0% 0% 9.10 100%
April 5% 93% 2% 0% 9.35 98%
May 8% 85% 6% 0% 9.80 93%
Emergency Room - Goal: 7-8 .
Average |% ratio met -
6 and below 7 8 9 10 Staffing Goal 80%
Jan-18 10% 61% 24% 3% 2% 7.6 90%
Feb-18 5% 29% 64% 0% 2% 7.53 95%
Mar-18 6% 34% 56% 4% 0% 7.5 94%
Apr-18 18% 42% 33% 7% 0% 6.94 [ 82%
May-18 3% 35% 37% 21% 3% 7.5 96%




17-Oct | 17-Nov | Dec-17 | 18-Jan | 18-Feb | 18-Mar | 18-Apr | 18-May

ENDO PROCEDURE 88 125 117 103 88 125 104 122
SURGERY PROCEDURE | 69 69 106 79 69 69 79 97
Total Procedure 157 194 223 182 157 194 182 219

Oct-17 | Nov-17 | DEC | Jan-18 | Feb-18 | Mar April | May

TOTAL CASE 209 148 151 150 181 204 177 202
TOTAL PROCEDURE 224 157 161 155 194 223 193 219
1P 88 68 79 76 68 78 68 90

oP 121 80 72 74 113 126 109 129

EGD a3 | 37 48 38 | 43 | 60 | 47 | 56

COLONOSCOPY 68 38 36 49 70 56 52 61

BRONCHOSCOPY 3 4 0 1 2 2 0 4
ERCP 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Total 116 79 85 88 115 118 99 122

HUMAN RESOURCES

ANNOUNCEMENT

Please join us in welcoming our new Human Resources Director to UMC. She joined the HR Team
on Monday, June 4, 2018:

e Marcia Nicholson, Director, Human Resources - Ms. Nicholson comes to UMC with many
years of Human Resources experience, most recently from the Office of the Chief Financial
Officer (OCFO). She has strategic leadership skills in talent acquisition, employee and
labor relations, records management, employee onboarding and retention, training and
development and a host of other talents we are excited to employ here at UMC. Ms.
Nicholson also brings with her a strong background in process/policy development and is
an active member of the Society of Human Resources Management (SHRM).

HUMAN RESOURCES INITIATIVE PROGRESS UPDATE:
e Members of the Human Resources team had the kick-off meeting to discuss new and
improved employee benefits.
o Human Resources leadership welcomed our new Risk Management Director, Ceceila
Davis who joined UMC on May 21, 2018.



INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

J2:0unc18
initiative START END  Status Comments
DATE DATE
‘Create and Maintain Appropriate IT Governance Apr-18  May-19
Structure
Establish IT Govemnance structure / Steering Note: Commitiee estahlished in Apiil as per schedule.
Committee However, its May meeting was postponed; to convene when

COD brought on board to accept charimanship.
In progress. Security Officer hired. Remediation of last two
remaining "notice of Findings® from most recent security audit

Deveiop and implement format IT Security Program

..... g e - aTEUNdRIWAN_
Develop and update all IT policies and procedures __ Process underway
institute Project Management processes Continuing progress
Update and Expand Applications Apr-18  Jun-20
Uparade Meditech Magic to current release level . Nov-18 e Shated t0 be completed by December. 2018,
Select / purchase / implement replacement for Jun-20 ‘Determination of future partnership for the UMC institution will

Meditech Magic have significant effect on setection of replacement Hospital
Information System. Finalists, pending that determination,

. are: Meditech Pmanse _and Cemer _
Compiete implementation of owned systems

{timing TBD by Steering Committee)
- Carefusion Pyxis Medication Distribution
- CareFusion MedMined infection Control &

" On track for June 2018 godive
Completed. Live date 6/7/18.

Medication Stewardship . . O [E——
- 3M360 Coding “{ive date adjusted from June fo August due to training
. . T = e s e AVBIADIV O VENdOr. .
- interface Meditech to eClinical Works cutpatient On track for September 2018 go-live
svstem . ‘

Curasban - Post Acute Patient Manaqement
Point Click Care - SNF

Meditech Maqic ED Medication Scanning

Meditech Maaic HR module

Obtain Meaningful Use compliance and maximize

MACGRA scores

Purchase and impiement systems as necessary Al - Steering ¢ -
- Medisolv Quality Measures reporting To be determined by IT Steering Committee. May be
i e e .. iMIDACtE] Dy prOpOSsed changes fo requiations,
- CareSeilect Clinical Decision Support To be defermined by IT Steering Commitiee. Maybe
e e ________...Imoacted by oronosed chanaes to requlations. ...
Patient data reports for downtime periods Jun-18| Reports developed, hardware purchased. On track for June
qo-live
Refurbish infrastructure Apr-18  May-19
Overhaul cable piant and wiring/communications May-19 Supplemental detail being obtalned to increase specificily of
dosets . e .- S
Deveiop and maintain Business Continuity / Aug-18 Plannlng for disaster rewvety /test is underway, being
Disaster Recovefy pian and processes, inciuding scheduled for September/Ociober, pending confirmation of

annual tesling . 1 ) dates by vendor.

implement appropriate IT securily teois/controls as T T Per Risk Analysis - resulis TBD
identified in annual testing

Upgrade data center environmentals, including
power availabilitv for servers

Replacement of printer/copier vendor - cost
savings

" Yo be combined with plam Taciiiies pmjec?s

On track for replacement of 70 printersicopiers

Wireless communication for Rursing On track for full implementation in June
Revamp IT Organization
Resfructure IT organization Realignment of IT department completed.

Fill critical IT vacancies Security Officer and Director of Biomedical and Clinical

Informatics hired. Recruiiment underway for HelpDesk and

Clinical Analvst positions.
implement intemnal processes, such as format Underway
chance management .
Expand seqvice to mclude suppon of a!l key Training in eClinicalWorks underway.

10



Tab 5

Committee Reports



]

UNITED

General Board Meeting
Date: June 27,2018

Patient Safety
& Quality
Committee

Dr. Malika Fair, Chair




"TeoA 91y 10§ swa[qoId SU-y31y SOYnuapI
Joquinu-)saySry oy} pue pud Juisn passasse YSIY :UB[J [OUOD UONOJJU] e
:U03B[) BIAIAS ‘SN
*A9AINS JUI3I SO
Surmoroj paygipow aq [ uefd a1y yey) Surpueisidpun yim pieog 10y pasoidde

9q ISNW PUB MIIADI Japun [[IIS ‘194 Jo se paaoidde jou ue[d [0NUO) UOTOJU] e aorssnasIq

Uy eulL ‘SN 3unsd

"‘paaoidde soynurtir SunsswW SNOIAdIJ uoIsSNISIY

BpUISY

‘ue)IuM Se pasoldde epuody | Ay Jo _«>c.aa.<

"UnsSNy [9RYOIAN AQ pauIuueiep wmniond) ‘' dL € 18 I9PIO 0] pa[[ed SULoN IPIO 01 [IBD

uId) uondy uorssnIsIq wa) epuddy
V/N udsqy

qnooe & eur 1] ‘jeySmSel stuue( I “Iojied B9[[V ‘Uode[D
BIAJAS ‘UI9Y] BUL], ‘TOJ[IUIRE] MAYNEIA “WEBYIOD) JUSDT[IA JOIOII(] ‘TJRUSYSY SWINIID) 10191 “Ire,] eNI[e]A "I ‘T1eyD Juasaid

8107 ‘61 TRIAV
SoINUIA Sunesjy epIuIo)) Ayjend) 2 A10Jes Jusned
uonerodio)) [endsoH 1301J-10-10N

WALNZID TVIRIAIN
a3z LINN \‘ 47



"souRnqUIL
Aq jou pue opIYeA ajeAld BIA SUIUMOIO SEM PUB DJA[] J& AIOAI[Sp SU() e
"Sjuasald Jatjow  J1 IDALSP 03 oov[d Ul oIe Jjeis Jey) pasiape jeySiySeyy ‘xq e
"VIV.LINE ¥0J Js1 431y © st yotym DN 18 pajdasoe jou
a1e Q2971 ey} Yd INoge AJUNUINIon SU} Ul PaPasu UOHIEONPS 2I0W—INO SIOJSURI)
soxmbai jeyy symoned gO Jo oseasour ue [udy U ‘uonda1od Jo ueid jo wed
se paugjsue sre jey) syuaned go opnjour 0} sjuaned jnpe Jo 9,07 TUIMIIAYY e
‘ST [HdVY seam uonosuod jo ued jo Aep ise]
"UIL}-[BSX UL PIJBAS[ SI S)pNE Ul SUIDOU0O Pue s1edA 7 Ieou soFe Sopnjour osfe
mq sp[o 1eak g[-¢ Apsow---1afsuen uoyendod juonjed omerpad Jo 94,001 pue
Apmys ased A[yyuowr apnoul 0} uoneonpa Surdo[aaa(g "sseooe Jusrjed ‘osimu a31eyo
--Sursmu ‘souer[dwod YTV LAH JOJ UOHEONPS SJBIPSUNUL PIPN[OUL UOLOALI0D
oy} :Ajreurioy paydooor 1A j0U ST [9A9T 9JBIS VIAD Inq ‘Aqreuwioj pejdacoe
[94977 Te1dpa] SO :810T YoIe] W0y Sulpuy uonsswo) Jo ueld VIVLINA e
NITA VNIL ‘SNOLLVINOHTA

‘woyemngas "UIJ B POAISIDI JOU
10d se joog pieog oy | SBY DINN "SI WIOL SIU UL S)[NSII 3OULULIOLISd 1004 ‘[9POUL JUSWISSINQUISL
Ul uejd [0RU0)) uondayuy | SUISEYoINg paseq anfeA 9y jo juduodwod e o ‘4SS ‘ILNVO ‘ISEVID

oy} Ul SJUSdeyE | SSINSBIW [ONUOD) UOLOJU] SY} Ul PIIS[Jal Se a1ed ofes SULIDAIPP ST DN

[[e 9pnJoul 0} [seydIpy | “TUSUIBII) UL SOOUSISIJIP JOJ JOO[ 0} PoISpISu0d 3q pnoys [eydsoy ur sanuedsy] e
paypnnsur :ared “I(g ‘uonnesad joejuos uo jnd st
juanjed yons winjol uodn pue 1eyndwoo oy ur pag3eyy st wstueSIio sour)sisal Snip
- 2anisod gum jusned Auy gyd Joj sjusned swoy-3ursinu [[e se [[om se
VSUA 10J pausaIos st juaned A10As SISU je a1e Aoy} asneoaq paS3epy o1e Ajifoe)
| [eUONOALI0D JO swoy Sursinu woy sjusned g [enusjod ‘our)sisar Snip-nnur

| 9aey Je]) suosiad pue sp10o01 [ed1pow 4 ysnoxy) Ysu-y31y se payjuspl a1e sjdned o




joog pieoq

Ul [eLI9JBW AQAING
Soxjdea oyp ppe
PnOoYs [oBLOIA -Ieq I

*dno18 YH JO uIOOU0D JOfEW € YH 9} 9ABI] O} POMO[[R PUB/UMOPYO0] 01 ANIQY o
"paj[eisur suoyng dtued e

"OATIOR SI Y I9JUD 0) POPISU 1OPeaIpIE) e |

VIELELID: (|

“gal1e oy} ur SOHQO 18 JoOo[ (301081 1S9¢ I0J [00} JUI[[2IX3
ue uoneIoossy [eNdso D oYl ma1aar 0} jeydwySey I pasiApe Iieg IJ e
***9)JRI MOYS OU %0¢ — siuounuiodde g9 0] G9 —SMOYS OU [[EOON »

‘uorsuedxd 10§

POSU oY} 20USY WILISIUT 2U) UT UOHNOS 159q 9q ABW OIUI[)) 918 AJRWILIJ--P3dU JO
9)eo1yIIad & axmbar Aewr axe)) wadin "R107 ‘10 [Udy uo paie)s dnoid g MON e
DIRL] ISe /308 JUdTA() MAN |

-padeyosip juoned suo ‘syusnjed aF1eyosIp A[NJssadons
0} uewispnqui)) pue HO( 03 payoeas Ajeandeord NS ur sjuaned YSU-UYSIH e
:(INS) Anpoey SuisImN pa[IS

‘Kytp1oey 0) Sune[al uonnjos uus)-3uoy 10§ Suroduo
uoIssSnosy(J "9 VAHH © 2sn 0} DD YSnoiy) paynusp] ‘WooI UOIB[OST/ 00T
omssoxd oAneSou ur ouop oq 03 ampadoid HOA Aq pamo[e XY pue
aoeds Areioduwn |, “A9AING UOISSTUILIO)) JUTOf wWwoJj sumeo ajepdn Adoosoysuolg e

:9)epd) Adodsoypuorg

SSNOSIP 0} NUNUOD
OS[® [[IA 991IUIIO)) ST, "SJUSAD SNOLISS UO UOISSIS PAsO])) Ul paeog ojepdn (xeq 1q
‘INHAY SNONYIS




"IN €S I8 pouwanofpe Jundd|y

‘AdoosoIonyq ‘uayoiry] ur spieoq-guryny) ‘urnsuy
:seare jeadoy A@erpowr ueSoq yomym ‘uefd oy oyum 03 sAep (] ‘[[RUSIBIA
a1t oy pue Surpuod s1 A19Jes-951T ‘Junsnp pue Junured noqe payo OS[e YIRS
[eIOIARBYDE "OSUIDI] Y} Jod se sjuanyed [[e 03 19JJ0 Jouued DA (] SN PISSIIppe
9q isnw pue Adoosoron],] 10} palIo sem AFojorpey] ‘Aseunreyd ul sSuIpuly [oQU0d
UOTJO9JU] "SUOpP SULIY SOWI0S---Sqe] J0J W) PunoIe-uin) saonpai pue uonisod qe
ur Suyyess ‘sopusaleduwoo o1jojiiod YH SUONBNSIUPe UOTBIIPIW ($310u01odwod
9IIY MOU pue uoneonps (sIpio ueIsAyd punoye saua[ey) -dI) [BOUL)D

SNSIOA 3Ing-pojN Sunnsus ‘ssousaisuodsar pue Junuodor sSulpuy [eoWUI) e

-oao1dunr 03 sweysAs Jo Suip[ing oy papnejdde HOQ e

‘110da1 ap1aoid o) sAep ssauisng §] e

‘PAPN[OUT JOU NS SIOASAINS § o

*A[es ur swed O PUB L1107 A[nf SeM ASAINS [enUUY o

:LoAS HOA




Infection Control Environmental Oversight

Infection Control ST - P

Background Future State and Countermeasures

1) Research Director of Pharmacy job

- Air Sample testing in the medication description; responsibilities for the
preparation area collected in March compounding and distribution of IV
positive for pathogenic fungus. medications (Completed)

- Infection Control unaware of the result 2) Air and Surface reporting results are

- Infection Control Environmental reports currently sent to the Director of
were not reported to Performance Pharmacy, Infection Control, and the
Improvement. Director of Quality

- Finding required immediate action and 3) A test result will be sent to the new
organizational plan recipients to verify action complete.

4) Research additional resources for air and
surface testing.

5) Infection Control Established EOC
reporting for high risk areas in the
organization. (Completed)

Current State Impact
System reporting of high risk testing and result 1) Two samples with in normal limits
reporting 2) Additional results reported as a standing
* Environmental testing is completed in item on the P and T minutes, IC committee,
high risk areas. And P| Committee
= Content experts are not aware of the 3) Job Description completed and reviewed
testing and resulting processes with the Director of Pharmacy
= Results are not communicated to the
governance structure
Objective Follow up




Infection Control Environmental Oversight

Create and maintain a reporting mechanism to
meet Infection Control standards in the
environment of care.

Govemance

Pharmacy and Therapeutics/6 months
Infection Control Committee for 6
months

QAPI (Performance Improvement
Committee) for 3 months and quarterly

Root Cause Analysis

Team Members

1) Pharmacist unaware of the testing
and results requiring additional
action

2) Support staff were receiving the
results without a back-up or
reporting to the Director of
Pharmacy

3) Environmental Infection Control
Surveillance had not been identified
as an infection control requirement
in the organization

4) The current vendor did not call the
“highly pathogenic” result to the
organizational identified leader.

1) Director of Pharmacy
2) Director of Quality
3) Infection Control Preventionist.




Infection Control Schedule Reports

Departments Monthly Bi-yearly Annually
Bio-Med Services
Negative Pressure Rooms

X
Negative Pressure Room by contractor

X

Laminar Flow Hoods
Pharmacy / Lab - by contractor X
OR Room pressure
Monitoring / SPD X
Dialysis
Water Culture X
Dialysate Culture Report

X
Pharmacy
Laminar Flow Hood Cleaning

X
Air Surface Monitoring
By Contractor X
SPD
Autoclave Monitoring X
Washer / Decontaminate Machine X
OR
AER Scope Washer X
Temperature / Humidity monitor X
Other
Facilities
Water Tower Testing X During summer
Pre- filter (hepa) change in pharmacy X
Environment of Care Services
Terminally clean — OR, Pharmacy, SPD X
Food Services
Refrigerator / Freezer monitor X
lce machine monitor X
Employee Health
Needle Sticks / PPD conversions X
Physical Exams

The above departments should provide monitoring reports to the Infection Control Department as
scheduled by the 5% day of the month during your reporting period.

Please provide email reports to Sylvia Clagon — Infection Preventionist — sclagon®@united-
medicalcenter.com

Contact number (cell) (202) 557-4619 or (office) (202 - 574-7177



Title: Pharmacy Infection Control |Page: 1 0of 7 \

Policy No: |IC 8D-22 | Effective |Review | Revised
6/2008 12/2011 11/2016,
11/2014  |06/2018

OBJECTIVE:
To promote effective infection Control measures in the pharmacy

SCOPE:
Pharmacy Department

POLICY:

The Department of Pharmacy constitutes a vital part in infection control because its products are
potentially disseminated to all patients. Contamination of medications, or other pharmacy
products, whether caused by faulty manufacturing, handling, storage, or compounding can have
disastrous effects on many patients throughout the hospital. Therefore, the department shall
establish and assure strict infection control procedures for all compounding and handling of
sterile and non-sterile products.

PROVISIONS:

General Information
All pharmacy personnel shall follow the policies and procedures of Occupational Health.

Food and beverages are permitted in non-compounding and non-IV areas of the pharmacy
only. Food and beverages are not to be stored in refrigerators used to store medications.

All drugs shall be stored under clean, safe environmental conditions on shelves or plastic
palettes.

Refrigerators shall be maintained at a temperature range of 36°F - 46°F and cleaned once
per month by pharmacy personnel.

Opened multi-dose vials returned to the pharmacy shall be discarded and not returned to
stock. All medication packaged in ampoules is intended for one time use only and the
unused portion shall be discarded once opened. Routine inspections should be performed
to ensure that expired medications are removed and disposed of properly.

Personnel shall wash hands frequently during the day to prevent contamination to other

drugs as well as themselves. Hands are thoroughly washed before dispensing

medications. Waterless hand hygiene products may be used as adjunct to soap and water.
IV Admixture Area

Definitions

Large Volume Parenteral (LVP)




Title: Pharmacy Infection Control Page: 20f7

Policy No: |IC 8D-22 Effective |Review |Revised
|6/2008  [12/2011 |11/2018,
11/2014 | 06/2018

A sterile solution of 250ml or more, intended for injection, and used in the diagnosis,
Cure, mitigation, or treatment of disease or modification of physiological functions in
Human beings, excluding blood.

Intravenous Admixture

Intravenous piggyback (IVPB) or mini-bag (a sterile solution of 50 to 249ml,
intended for injection) to which one or more additional drug products have
been added in the hospital.

Receiving and Storage

The containers of large volume parenteral (LVPs) shall be inspected for water marks
indicating container breakage and signs of excessive abuse in handling (e.g. carton
contents, such as cracking of glass containers). Damaged cartons shall be separated from
the rest of the shipment for closer inspection and replacement, if necessary.

Precaution shall also be taken when removing LVPs and related products from their
shipping cartons to detect defects that were not initially apparent (e.g. crystals on outside
of containers, cracks, dents, incomplete products, visible turbidity, mold growth, improper
labeling, or outdated products). If a problem is found, the product shall be removed.

Products shall be stored exercising proper handling techniques, including protection from
excessive heat or cold, and rotation of inventory.

IV Preparation Room (Compounding)

e Will be cleaned with a USP 797 approved sporicidal cleaner, mixed with sterile
water that is applied with micro fiber cloths and a micro fiber mop.

¢ Terminal cleaning will be completed monthly and will include pharmacy
responsibilities, pharmacy will be responsible for cleaning the laminar flow hood,
table top and shelving. Environmental Services will be responsible for cleaning the
floors, ceiling, and walls.

¢ Counters and easily cleanable work surfaces are cleaned daily

¢ Floors are cleaned daily

¢ Environmental Services will assign 1V room specific cleaning buckets, mops, and
micro-fiber cloths for the IV room and pharmacy

e A tacky mat will be placed at the entrance through the ante room to decrease
contamination.

¢ A medication storage refrigerator will be relocated outside of the medication
preparation room for decrease entry into the preparation room.



[ Title:

Pharmacy Infection Control Page: 3 of 7 |

Policy No: |IC 8D-22 Effective | Review Revised

| 6/2008 | 12/2011 |11/2018,
| 111/2014 | 06/2018

¢ Air and laminar flow hood testing by an outside vendor will be completed every six
months and test results notification will be provided to the Director of Pharmacy,
Director of Quality and Infection Control

e No food or drinks are permitted into the ante-area or buffer area of the pharmacy.

A clean work area with adequate lighting, isolated from heavy traffic, and separated from
contaminated supplies shall be available for compounding sterile supplies.

Floors shall be maintained by environmental services on a daily basis, using hospital
approved detergent/disinfectant.

All non-recessed hanging light fixtures shall be cleaned on a routine basis.

Work surfaces, bench tops, and countertops shall be cleaned daily with hospital approved
detergent/disinfectant and weekly with a sporicidal agent.

Drugs, packaging supplies, and drug containers shall be stored in a clean, dry, dust-free
area not in direct contact with the floor. Storage shelves shall be cleaned routinely not in
direct contact with the floor. Storage shelves shall be cleaned routinely

Drugs and pharmaceutical supplies shall not be stored under sinks.

Compounding of sterile products shall be performed under Laminar Flow Hoods. This
includes any manipulation that could introduce contaminants into an IV solution, eye drops,
etc.

Laminar Flow Hoods

Laminar Flow Hoods (LFHs) shall be cleaned at least once each shift at the beginning of
each shift hospital approved disinfectant, then wiped with sterile 70% isopropyl alcohol and
germicidal wipe. All items shall be removed from the hood before proceeding.

Pre-filters of LFHs shall be changed the first of each month. The date and initials of the
individual changing the filter shall be on a Periodic Maintenance record in Building
Services. The grill shall be wiped with hospital approved disinfectant when the pre-filter is
changed.

The HEPA filters shall be changed when the air flow drops below 70 feet per minute and
cannot be corrected by increasing the blower speed.

The operational efficiency of each hood shall be inspected and certified by an outside
independent contractor every 6 months. Notification of test results will be provided to the
Director of Pharmacy, Director of Quality and Infection Control. The results will also be



Title:

Pharmacy Infection Control _ [Page: 4 of 7

Policy No: |IC 8D-22 |Effective |Review | Revised

6/2008 12/2011 | 11/2016,
11/2014 | 06/2018

presented to the Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee and the Prevention and Control
of Infections Committee.

Ideally, the LFH should run 24 hours a day. If a hood has been turned off, at least a 30
minute warm-up plus a thorough cleaning shall be performed prior to use.

Personnel shall work at least six inches within the LFH to avoid turbulence, which could
introduce contaminated air into the hood.

Only equipment necessary for each procedure shall be placed in the hood.

Arrange articles and work flow in LFH in such a manner that clean air does not flow over
dirty articles and contaminate other articles that must remain sterile.

To assure unimpeded air flow, place large articles toward outside LFH.
Personnel shall not laugh, cough, talk, or sneeze into LFH.

Personnel with upper respiratory infections shall not be involved in the preparation of
sterile products.

Personnel shall exercise strict aseptic techniques when compounding or manipulating all
sterile products.

A distinctive supplementary label shall be attached to each IV admixture stating: The
solution, the additives, and their expiration notice, administration rate, patient name,
patient room number, and the initials of the pharmacist and technician.

After checking the solution, additives, labels, and compounding accuracy of supportive
personnel, the pharmacist shall initial the designated area of each 1V admixture label.

Distribution

Appropriate IV admixtures shall be refrigerated following the compounding process until
time to be delivered to the nursing units.

Nursing personnel shall assume responsibility for IV admixture storage on the nursing
units prior to time of administration.

Personnel

Non-pharmacy personnel are not permitted in the IV admixture area during times when
IV’s are being admixed.



| Title:

Pharmacy Infection Control [ Page: 5 of 7

Policy No: |IC 8D-22 Effective |Review |Revised

6/2008 12/2011 | 11/2016,
11/2014 | 06/2018

Compounding personnel shall remove personal outer garments (e.g bandannas, coats,
hats, jackets, scarves, sweaters, vest; all cosmetics, because they shed flakes and
particles

Remove all hand, wrist, and other visible jewelry or piercings (e.g. earrings, lip or eyebrow
piercings) that can interfere with the effectiveness of personal protective equipment (PPE)
(fit of gloves and cuffs of sleeves)

The wearing of artificial nails or extenders is prohibited while working in the sterile
compounding environment. Natural nails shall be kept neat and trimmed.

Personnel shall don the following PPE in an order that proceeds from those activities
considered the dirtiest to those considered the cleanest. Garbing activities considered the
dirtiest include donning of dedicated shoes or shoe covers, head and facial hair covers
(e.g., beard covers in addition to face mask), and face mask/eye shields. Eye shields are
optional unless working with irritants such as germicidal disinfecting agents or when
preparing hazardous drugs.

Perform hand sanitation then don a nonshedding gown with sleeves that fit snugly around
wrist and enclosed at the neck

Once inside the compounding area and prior to donning sterile powder-free gloves,
perform hand hygiene.

Handwashing facilities shall be located in close proximity to all work areas used for
preparation and dispensing of pharmaceuticals.

Hands shall be thoroughly washed with the hospital approved antimicrobial solution at
least each shift and after each interruption which would grossly contaminate the hands.

Gloves are to be replaced after each shift, and after each interruption which would grossly
contaminate the hands.

Education

Technical personnel who compound IV admixtures shall be rigidly trained and adequately
checked and supervised by licensed pharmacy personnel.

The Technician Training Program shall include life demonstration, video/audio tapes,
and/or readings on:

* Routes and administration of medication and dosage forms.

*  Drug nomenclature.

» Abbreviations

+ Weights, measures, and pharmaceutical calculations 0 Medication orders.



Title: | Pharmacy Infection Control Page: 6 of 7

Policy No: |IC 8D-22 Effective | Review Revised
6/2008 12/2011 | 11/2016,
] 11/2014 | 06/2018

+ Aseptic techniques.
Quality Assurance

All pharmacy personnel that work in the IV admixture areas shall be evaluated annually for
competency in aseptic technique and pharmaceutical calculations.

Periodic departmental service audits shall be conducted in the IV admixture areas to
assure compliance with established policies and procedures.

In cooperation with the Pharmacy & Therapeutics and the Infection Control Committees,
the Pharmacy shall participate in the hospital-wide antibiotic drug utilization review efforts
by providing data on antibiotic usage patterns.

Suspected Drug Contamination

If a drug is suspected of being contaminated (bacterial, fungal, etc.) the Director of
Pharmacy or Designee, shall be contacted. The Infection Control Department shall
also be notified of the problem and its possible extent. A sample(s) of the
suspected product shall be sent to the Microbiology Laboratory for culturing and/or
analysis of contents.

All dispensing areas and pharmacy stores shall be contacted and asked to locate
and quarantine all of the suspected drug product with the same lot number.

If the Microbiology Report is positive for growth, then an additional sample with the
same lot number shall be sent to the Microbiology Laboratory for confirmation.

If the second sample confirms the initial Microbiology Report, then:

+ All dispensing areas shall return their supply to pharmacy stores,
where it shall be quarantined pending further action.

» Al non-pharmacy areas which may have a supply of the affected item
shall be inspected for the product.

* The manufacturer and the appropriate governmental agencies shall
be notified and return procedures shall be initiated.



[Title: 1 Pharmacy Infection Control Page: 7 of 7

Policy No: |IC 8D-22 Effective |Review |Revised
| 6/2008  |12/2011 | 11/2016,
11/2014 | 06/2018

4 OO0

Reference:

797 Pharmaceutical Compounding — Sterile Preparations_Guidelines

Infection Control: A Practical Guide for Health Care Facilities 2016 by George Allen, PhD, CIC,
CNOR; Cathy Frye, Contributing Editor

General Best Practice Guidelines for immunization Best Practices of the Advisory Committee on
Immunization Practices (ACIP) March 9, 2017

The ISMP Guidelines for Safe Preparation of Compounded Sterile Preparation of Compounded
Sterile Preparations (September 19, 2016)
Drug Distribution and Control Preparations and handling — Guidelines (June 2, 2014)

ASPOH Guidelines on Compounding Sterile Preparations AM J Health System Pharm
2014:71:145-66

Next Review Due Date

June 2021



May 2018

Background

~ Severe Sepsis/Septic Shock

Future State and Counermeasures

e Severe Sepsis is a Life-threatening organ
dysfunction caused by a systemic
infection

e Septic Shock is a Subset of sepsis with
circulatory and cellular/metabolic
dysfunction associated with higher risk of
mortality

Severe Sepsis and Septic shock can occur in any
of our patient care departments and the early
identification and treatment of severe Sepsis and
septic shock are directly related to positive
outcomes.

Quality Improvement Principles and
Methodologies
- Sepsis FMEA — A3 Methodology
Sharing Knowledge

» Reconvene Sepsis Committee Meetings

> Review Sepsis Mortality Data and cases

» Develop and track Pl projects to improve
sepsis care and decrease mortality

» Sepsis cases will be discussed at ED and
Inpatient staff meetings

» Engaging Key Stake Holders

Tools and resources

Sepsis screening of all patients to be completed
not only by RNs at ED Triage but also on
Inpatient units at every shift, Quality will
monitor compliance (95% compliance)

Providers will be notified of patients with new
SIRS criteria, Quality will monitor

Lactate greater than 2 has been placed into the
Global Trigger tool for daily staff notification of
potential severe sepsis and septic shock (Done)

Lactate over 2 has been classified as a critical lab
requiring telephone notification of primary nurse
(Done)

Severe Sepsis care pathway will be developed
and implemented, paper format (Kathy Prestige)

Review and develop Sepsis Protocol Forms and
Flowsheets on ED intranet with sepsis criteria
(Nursing leadership, IT)

ED Tracking Board that includes alerts for
patients with positive sepsis screens and lactate
values greater than 2mmol/L (Can this be done?)
(Nursing leadership and IT)




May 2018

= Update severe sepsis policy to include
sepsis screening at triage and on Inpatient
units every shift to improve recognition
of patients with sepsis (Done)

* Education for RNs on sepsis screening
and provider notification (Nurse
Educator with Nursing Leadership)

* Add provider notification to SIRS
screening in the EHR (Quality and IT)

» Sepsis education for current and new
providers (CMO)

» Create Sepsis specific documentation
(Alert Event and Reassessment Notes)
(Quality and IT)

» - Provider interventions documented

* - Non-sepsis patients with abnormal vital
signs ruled out

April 2017

Impact/March 2018

Beginning state;

United Medical Center’s mortality from Severe
Sepsis and Septic Shock 3 times the national
rates.

UMC failing the Severe Sepsis/Septic Shock
Bundles in the 3 hour bundle.

Greater than 50% of failures related to initial
lactate, repeat lactate, and administration of
crystalloids 30ml/kilo.

60% of UMC ICU mortality related to severe
sepsis/septic shock.

Less than 10% of UMC severe sepsis/septic
shock is identified in the ER.

See graphs.

Objective

Follow up




May 2018

Improve by 25% severe sepsis and septic
shock provision of care and
documentation to meet the 3 and 6 hour
bundle within 3 months.

Reduce the mortality related to severe
sepsis and septic shock by 25% in 2018.

Recognition- Early Goal Directed Therapy

SIRS screening will occur in the ED at
triage and at every shift inpatient
When Severe Sepsis/Septic shock criteria
is met in the ED it will be placed on the
tracking board for the physician and the
nurse in the ED
When SIRS criteria plus organ
dysfunction and suspected infection
occurs inpatient outside if the ICU and
ER, Rapid Reponses are called.

e Review each case to provide follow up to
team members.

e On-going staff education

e Each unit to trend chart reviews on
patients who arrests.

Root Cause Analysis

Team Members

e Electronic Health Record does not
provide alerts

e Care Pathways are not built into the
Electronic Health Record

¢ Documentation of provider
notification and action not
documented

e Handoff of patients enrolled in the
sepsis protocol from the ED to
Inpatient units not in place

Inconsistent use of the severe sepsis

order set

Sepsis policy not reflective of best

practice

Knowledge deficit of the Severe Sepsis

policy

. Established Sepsis team,;

e Tina Rein RN-C, BSN- Director of
Quality, chair

e Leslie N. Rodney, RN BSN,PI
Coordinator, co-chair

¢ Dennis Haghighat- Chief Medical

Officer
e Mina Yacoub MD- Chief of Staff
e CNO
e Jordan Warchol, MD- Emergency
Services

e Chief of Hospitalist

e Doris Onyima RN, Assistant Director
of Nursing Medical Surgical

e Majeed Sanori RN, Clinical Supervisor
Critical Care




May 2018

e Communication to providers when SIRS ¢ Fernando Calalin RN, Clinical
criteria met inconsistent Supervisor ER

e Best practice according Surviving Sepsis
Guidelines is inconsistently being
followed.

¢ Delay in labs in the ED when SIRS criteria
met

e Lactate labs cancelled as duplication

ED ORDER SETS USED

MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT ocT NOV DEC

= % OF ORDER SETS USED



May 2018

ED SCREENINGS

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT oCcT NOV DEC
» % OF APPROPRIATE ED SCREENS
DX CHANGED TO SEPSIS W/! 24 HRS OF
ADMIT
20% N 20%
JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE juLy AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC

» % OF CHANGED DX



May 2018

INPT ORDER SET USED

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY  JUNE  JULY  AUG SEPT ocT

» % OF ORDER SETS USED

Sepsis Reasons for Failure

VMasppresser Admin .95
- = Hour Counver 2.74%

N miﬁ;ﬁmpmmmn 6.91%

NOV

DEC



May 2018

40%

35%

30%

25%

20%

15%

10%

5%

0

X

Sepsis Mortality

Quarter 2/17 Quarter 3/17 Quarter 4/17 Quarter 1/18

» UMC = National

Next Steps

Nursing and Provider Education on the changes to the policy and use of Rapid
Response for Resuscitation

Develop a Severe Sepsis competency for annual review and orientation
Developing a Bundle checklist for frontline staff to meet the 3 and 6-hour bundle
ED Medical Director to review ED severe sepsis and septic shock cases

A Quality nurse will be assigned to ED, Med surg, and ICU to partner with nursing
leadership to Champion meeting the bundles



Vi@ U iVI\L

UNITED

N—— MEDICAL CENTER

General Board Meeting
Date: June 27,2018

Finance
Committee
Report

Wayne Turnage, Chair

i
@ s




UNITED

MEDICAL CENTER

Not For Profit Hospital Corporation
United Medical Center

Board of Directors Meeting
Preliminary Financial Report Summary
For the eight months ending May 31, 2018




O\ /S Table of Contents

UNITED

Gap Measures

Key Financial Information Summary

Key Indicators with graphs

Income Statement with Prior Year Numbers
Income Statement with Forecast Variances
Balance Sheet

Cash Flow

N R W=




>/ Gap Measures Tracking

‘(l
UNITED

MEDICAL CENTER
Not-For-Profit Hospital Corporation
FY 2018 Actual Gap Measures

As of May 2018
FY 2018 Original Percent
Gap Measures Gain/(Loss) | Adjustments| Realized Balance | Accomplished
May 2018 Annualized Net Income (Loss) from Operations: ($13,575,000)
|Add: Initiatives to be Realized
Revenue Cycle:
A. Documentation Enhancements/AR Review $3,000,000 $0 $2.474,069 $525,931 82.5%
B. Charge Capturing (Infusion/Therapy) $625,000 $0 $0 $625,000 0.0%
C. Hospital Based Clinics Charges $816,000 ($398,656) $0 $417,344 0.0%
GWUMF A Professional Fees Collection $1,225,000 $0 $161,420 $1,063,580 13.2%
GWUMF A Additional Cost ($2,700,000) $0 $1,468,000 ($1,232,000) ’ 54.4%
Psych Volume Growth $375,000 $0  $140,000 $235,000 37.3%
ER Admits Volume Increase $1,225,000 $0  $100,389  $1,124,611 8.2%
Supply Chain Management $3,010,000 $0  $190,000 2,820,000 6.3%
Overtime And Outside Agency Costs $500,000 $0 $0 $500,000 0.0%
Length Of Stay Reduction $200,000 $0 $0 $200,000 0.0%
FTE Reduction Of 20 $500,000 $0 $0 $500,000 0.0%
District Subsidy (Proposed) $10,000,000 $0 $2,000,000 $8,000,000 20.0%
$18,776,000 | ($398,656)] $6,533,878 | $1,204,466 | 32.7%|

Adjusted Net Income (Loss) from Operations:




b\/ Key Financial Information Summary

UNITED

oo O

Comparative financials have been presented based on original forecast run-rate annualized and adjusted for gap measure initiatives which were originally
slated to start in April 2018.

Cash on Hand at the end of May 2018 was 17.31 days, excluding capital funds.

The Month of May 2018 shows an operating gain of $1.9M which is a result of the $2.0M operational subsidy recognized.

May 2018 year to date net operating loss totals $9.0M. The year to date loss annualized is $13.6M and can be attributed to Key Initiatives not yet realized.
Below are updated on key areas of interest.

INITIATIVE WATCH:

a

Q

Q

0o 0o 0 O

Revenue Cycle:

» Clinical Documentation effort and extensive work on AR has contributed $2.5M year to date to net revenue due (o the reprocessing of claims, to contract
review and updates by management, and extensive AR work. Management is confident that it will accomplish the original projection of $3.0M.

» Charge Capturing (Infusion/Therapy) has been reanalyzed and the $625K will be realized by year-end.

» Hospital Based Clinic revenue projection of $816K has being re-analyzed based on current clinic volumes and this has resulted in a shortfall of $399K.
Outside of the interface between E-Clinical Works (ECW) and Meditech, continued analysis will be performed to ensure that all regulatory requirements
are being met and the projection will be reviewed and updated.

Psych Volume Growth

= Admission for the month of May exceeded the average admissions for the past seven months by 7 admissions and has contributed approximately $140K

to the net patient revenues. This has been reflected in the gap volume increase initiative.
ER Admits Volume Increase:
»  Admission for the month of May exceeded the average admissions for the past seven months by 37 admissions and has contributed approximately
$100K to the net patient revenues. This has been reflected in the gap volume increase initiative.

Supply Chain Management:

»  An analysis of Supply Chain Management is forthcoming.
Overtime and Outside Agency Costs Reduction:

= Overtime continues to be a challenge due to hard to fill positions.
FTE Reduction:

= FTE reduction related to OB overhead is ongoing until realized.
District Subsidy:

= For the Month of May $2.0M in other revenue is reflected as part of the $10.0M pledge for FY 2018.



/< Key Indicators

UNITED

MEQICAL CENTER

VOLUME INDICATORS:
Admissions (Consolidated) Actual Admissions 2,960 3,420 3,355 4,727 - -
Inpatient/Outpatient Surgeries Actual Surgeries 1,206 1,440 1,368 1,715 - -
Emergency Room Visits Actual Visits 32,886 37,927 38,072 39,357 - -
PRODUCTIVITY & EFFICIENCY INDICATORS:
Number of FTEs Total Hours Paid/Total Hours YTD 842 842 839 839 - -
Case Mix Index Total DRG Weights/Discharges 1.32 1.32 1.07 1.14 1.04 1.04

Salaries/Wages and Benefits as a % of =~ Total Salaries, <<m.m0m, and Benefits S56%  55.2% 5559 58.1% 58 0% 58.2%
Total Expenses /Total Operating Expenses

PROFITABILITY & LIQUIDITY INDICATORS:

Net Account Receivable (AR) Days Net Patient Receivables/Average 45 51 43 26 48 48
Daily Net Patient Revenues
Net Account Receivable (AR) Days Inc.  Net Patient Receivables/Average 22 90 76 63 ) i
Unbilled* Daily Net Patient Revenues
Cash Collection as a % of Net Revenue  Total Cash Collected/ Net Revenue 90.1% 90.5% 98.0% 99.0% 95.8% 95.8%
Days Cash on hand Total Cash \AOc.mE.ﬁ:m Expenses less 29 17 45 48 212 212
Depreciation/Days)
Operating Margin % (Gain or Loss) Net Opearting Income/Total A76% -127%  36%  -2.2% 3.4% 3.4%
Operating Expenses

*Note: Unbilled: Unbilled included in the Net AR days represents claims for in-house patients who are not yet discharged as well as discharged
patients within the bill-hold review days.



W

MEDICAL CENTER

Total Admissions (Consolidated)

700

600

500

L

400

300

200

100

Oct

Mar

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

|mFY 2018

482

420

397

435

426

399

401

= Forecast 18

482

420

397

406

426

358

433

wFY 2017

558

582

660

634

610

564

565

Less Nursery and OB for FY 2017




/5 Inpatient/Outpatient Surgeries

UNITED
MEDICAL CENTER
mFY 2018 mForecast 18 #FY 2017
CEk 234
223 21 = 225
. . = . n _ b« : . 209
202 207 o R =5 ] 203 -

151 1501

May

Oct Nov Dec Jan



W

UNITED

MEDICAL CENTER

Total Emergency Room

Visits

4000 |

. e ~ Oct ~ Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May
e FY 2018 4,881 4,576 4,624 4,884 4,496 4,722 4,703 5,041
== Forecast 18 4,881 4,576 4,624 4,884 4,496 4,722 4,703 5,186
~¥~FY 2017 4,861 4,727 4,943 4,847 4,729 5,167 4,923 5,160




W(\\. Number of FTESs

UNITED

MEDICAL CENTER

843

842

841 B —

mhuo 1

839

FTEs

838 ———

837

836 —

835 ==

834 FY 2018 Forecast 18 FY 2017

'=4=FTEs 842 840 _ 837




01

10

AON

23(]

uer

a4

B

dy

Key

gL isedalodm QIO Adw

L10T Ad =

UILNID WA

d3aLINN

XJpUuJ XIJA] 9S8



UNITED

MEDICAL CENTER

54.4%

54.2%

54.0%

53.8%

53.6%

53.4% -

53.2%

53.0%

52.8% -

Salaries/Wages & Benefits as a % of

Total Operating Expenses

=4=FY 2018

==g==Forecast 18
a=pue FY 2017

53.3%

FY 2018

Forecast 18

FY 2017

11



) - ‘ — @
.
UNITED
MEDICAL CENTER

Net Accounts Receivable (AR)

Days With & Without Unbilled

1000 -

90.0

80.0

70.0

60.0

50.0

40.0

30.0

20.0

100 -

FY 2018

Forecas t 18

adrs AR Without Unbilled «{J=~ AR With Unbilled —— Linear (AR Without Unbilled)

FY 2017

12



>/

Cash Collection as a % of Net Revenues

‘,
UNITED
MEOICAL CENTER
May .
Apr
Mar -
Feb
Jan
Dec
Nov
Oct
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100% 120%
| Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May
= FY 2018 90% 86% 85% 86% 87% 88% 90% 91%
= Forecast 18 83% 79% 90% 76% 81% 87% 84% 96%
=FY 2017 97% 98% 97% 7% 100% 103% 101% 98%

13



.J‘W. Um%mOmer_aﬂm:Q

MEDICAL CENTER

mFY 2018 mForecast 18 = FY 2017
58.8
58.0 573

S0.4 ] 50.6 9.8
48.2

48.0 ! | ' |
450 || 450 | 450 I} 45.0 45.0 450 |

45.0 | 45.0

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May

14



MNW. Operating Margin % (Gain or Loss)

UNITED

MEDICAL CENTER

30.0% j = —
200% - : . -
c .
10.0% 7
. mln..-n
q 00% ”\\\g} i w!/“
O .100% 5 }
m \ /.p / .1\ \
m |NOO~VO [ /4/ J(
m IWO.OQ@ — ,.1, |ﬂu\.
B _40.0% - A
\ y
-50.0% / v4
-60.0% =
-70.0% Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar ~ Apr May
--FY 2018 -6.6% -20.7% -22.7% -28.2% -1.4% -16.6% -20.9% 14.7%
-@-Forecast _w 0.6% . -0.5% -1.9% -3.5% -4.6% -2.5% -3.4% -12.6%
=== FY 2017 -11.7% 3.6% 1.7% -3.9% -1.5% -56.3% 3.1% 24.83%

15



[
u}(‘n Income Statement
UNITED FY18 Operating Period Ending May 31, 2018

MEDICAL CENTER
Month of May Variance 2018 Year To Date Variance = B
Actual Forecast Prior Actual/Forecast Actual/Prior Actual Forecast Prior Actual/Forecast bnn:m_._.\_u:o_‘
Statistics
Admission 460 424 554 36 8% (94) -17% 3,420 3,355 4,727 65 2% (1,307) -28%
Patient Days 5,825 6,240 6,537 (415) -7% (712) -11% 47,224 47,639 52,401 (415) -1% (5,177) -10%
Emergency Room Visits 5,041 5,186 5,160 (145) -3% (119) -2% 37,927 38,072 39,357 (145) 0%| (1,430) -4%
Clinic Visits 1,572 1,413 1,672 159 11% (100) -6% 12,223 13,119 13,120 (896) -7% (897) -7%
IP Surgeries 117 71 114 46 65% 3 3% 671 634 813 37 6% (142) -17%
OP Surgeries 117 122 97 (5) -4% 20 21% 769 734 902 35 5% (133) -15%
xmn:o_o@l\ Visits 1,067 835 1,117 232 28% (50) -4% 7,740 7,508 8,860 232 3%| (1,120) -13%
Revenues
Net Patient Service
Revenue 9,843 9,347 11,399 496 5%| (1,556) -14% 56,249 55,755 67,652 494 1%| (11,403) -17%
DSH - - 320 - 0% (320) 0% - 3,353 - 0%| (3,353) 0%
CNMC Revenue 231 269 270 (38) -14% (39) -14% 1,870 1,908 1,816 (38) -2% 54 3%
Other Revenue 3,255 1,430 877 1,825 128%| 2,378 271% 19,553 17,413 6,573 2,140 12%| 12,980 197%
Total Operating
Revenue 13,329 | 11,046 12,866 2,283 20.7% 463 3.6% 77,672 75,076 79,394 2,596 3.5%| (1,722) -2.2%
Expenses
Salaries and Wages 4,797 5,294 4,695 (497) -9% 102 2% 37,888 38,379 37,272 (491) -1% 616 2%
Employee benefits 1,178 1,518 1,147 (340) -22% 31 3% 9,988 10,327 9,864 (339) -3% 124 1%
Contract labor 252 383 532 (131) -34% (280) -53% 2,457 2,587 3,626 (130) -5%| (1,169) -32%
Professional fees 628 1,006 625 (378) -38% 3 0% 6,007 6,385 5,946 (378) -6% 61 1%
Supplies 955 901 881 54 6% 74 8% 7,553 7,231 7,193 322 4% 360 5%
Pharmaceuticals 316 546 267 (230) -42% 49 18% 2,503 2,999 2,452 (496) -17% 51 2%
Purchased services 2,648 2,011 1,254 637 32%| 1,394 111% 14,469 13,831 9,281 638 5% 5,188 56%
Other 630 780 564 (150) -19% 66 12% 5,857 5,998 5,483 {141) -2% 374 7%
Total Operating
Expenses 11,404 | 12,439 9,965 (1,035) -8.3%| 1,439 14% 86,722 87,737 81,117 (1,015) -1.2% 5,605 6.9%
Operating Gain /(Loss) 1,925 (1,393) 2,901 3,318 238% (976) -34% (9,050) (12,661) (1,723) 3,611 29%| (7,327) -425%

Dedicated to health & well-being 16



ﬂ‘\. May 2018 Income Statement with Forecast and
o Budget

UNITED
MEDICAL CENTER
Adjusted
MAY 18 YTD Original 2018
MAY 2018 MAY 2018 Actual 2018 Forecast
YTD YTD /Forecast YTD Approved Based on
Actual Forecast Var Variance %% Budget JAN 18
STATISTICS
Admissions 3,420 3,355 65 2% 6,302 5,199
Patient Days 47,224 47,639 (415) -19% 78,404 75,256
Emergency Room Visits 37,927 38,072 (145) 0% 57,529 62,707
Clinic Visits 12,223 13,119 (896) -7% 18,619 18,546
IP Surgical Visits 671 634 37 6% 990 a75
OP Surgeries 769 734 35 5246 1,006 994
OPERATING REVENUE
Net Patient service revenue S 56,249 S S5,755 494 1% $ 115,972 S 107,409
CNMC Revenue 1,870 1,908 (38) -2% 3,023 2,902
Other Revenue 19,553 17,413 2,140 12% 6,436 29,734
Total Operating Revenue s 77,672 S 75,076 S 2,596 o 39 $ 125,431 S 140,045
ER NSE
Salaries & Wages S 37,881 S 38,379 s (498) -1%% S 58,016 S 58,785
Employee Benefits 9,988 10,327 (339) -3% 14,476 16,797
Contract Labor 2,457 2,587 (130) -5% 2,560 4,585
Professional Fees 6,007 6,385 (378) -6% 8,473 11,027
Supplies 8,177 7,231 946 13% 9,938 10,327
Pharmaceuticals 1,885 2,999 (1,114) -37% 3,381 2,451
Purchased Services 14,469 13,831 638 5% 18,857 24,720
Other 5,857 5,998 (141) -2% 8,455 9,564
Total Operating Expense S 86,722 S 87,737 S AH.OHMV1 -1% $ 124,156 S 138,256
Operating Gain / (Loss) S (9,050) $ (12,661) S 3,611 -29% $ 1,275 S 1,789

17



Balance Sheet
As of the month ending May 31, 2018

MTD Change

UNITED

MEDICAL CENTER

YTD Change
Current Assets:

$ 29,241 $ 31,494 $ (2,253) Cash and equivalents $ 25,855 $ 3,386
20,218 17,886 2,332 Net accounts receivable 24,240 (4,022)
2,143 2,109 34 Inventories 1,904 239

5,998 3,561 2,437 Prepaid and other assets 2,898 3,100
57,600 55,050 2,550 Total current assets 54,897 2,703

Long-Term Assets:

235 235 - Estimated third-party payor settlements 235 (0]

74,579 75,262 (683) Capital assets 79,387 = (4,808)
74,815 75,497 (683) Total long term assets 79,622 (4,807)

$ 132,415 _$ 130,547 _3$ 1,867 Total assets $ 134,519 $ (2,104)

Current Liabilities:

$ - $ S5 (5) Current portion, capital lease obligation $ 36 $ (36)
12,058 10,791 1,267 Trade payables 10,259 1,799
7,501 7,103 398 Accrued salaries and benefits 8,808 (1,307)

1,887 1,887 = Other liabilities 1,979 (92)
21,446 19,786 1,660 Total current liabilities 21,082 364

Long-Term Liabilities:

7,374 8,443 (1,069) Unearned grant revenue 1,328 6,046

3,534 3,522 12 Estimated third-party payor settlements 4,683 (1,149)

2,491 2,416 75 Contingent & other liabilities 2,016 475
13,399 14,381 (982) Total long term liabilities 8,027 5,372

e e S et S T R et e e a8 ]

97,570 96,380 1,190 Unrestricted 105,410 (7,840)
97,570 96,380 1,190 Total net position 105,410 (7,840)
% 132,415 + 130,547 % 1,868 Total liabilities and net position $ 134,519 $ (2,104)

18



UNITED
Month of May
Actual Prior Year
$ 7,556 L3 11,042
(6,607) (5,549)
(5,577) (5,302)
2,730 874
(1,898) 1,065
(5) (15)
- (8]
(350) (1,631)
(355) (1,646)
(2,253) (581)
31,494 29,964
£ 29,241 $ 29,383

Statement of Cash Flow

As of the month ending May 31, 2018

Dollars in Thousands

Year-to-Date

Actual Prior Year
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from and on behalf of patients $ 59,155 $ 71,225
Payments to suppliers and contractors (41,049) (36,858)
Payments to employees and fringe benefits (49,176) (45,666)
Other receipts and payments, net 6,193 11,254
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (24,877) (45)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of investments
Purchases of investments
Receipts of interest - -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities - -
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Repayment of notes payable - -
Receipts (payments) from/(to) District of Columbia 21,248 -
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 21,248 -
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Repayment of capital lease abligations (36) (73)
Receipts (payments) from/(to) District of Columbia 8,827 5,096
Change in capital assets (1,776) (13,206)
Net cash (used in) capital and related financing activ 7,015 (8,183)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 3,386 (8,228)
Cash and equivalents, beginning of period 25,855 37,611
Cash and equivalents, end of period $ 29,241 $ 29,383

19



